
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  
Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk

5 July 2021

Committee Overview and Scrutiny

Date Tuesday, 13 July 2021

Time of Meeting 4:30 pm

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn Room

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED 
TO ATTEND

Agenda

1.  ANNOUNCEMENTS

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the 
nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the 
visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further instructions 
(during office hours staff should proceed to their usual assembly point; 
outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). Please do not re-
enter the building unless instructed to do so. 

In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.   

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions. 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 
Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any 
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the 
approved Code applies.

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Item Page(s)

2

4.  MINUTES 1 - 17

To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2021.

5.  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 18 - 26

To determine whether there are any questions for the relevant Lead 
Members and what support the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can 
give to work contained within the Plan.

6.  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
2021/22

27 - 36

To consider the forthcoming work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

7.  UBICO REPORT 2020/21 37 - 64

To consider the 2020/21 outturn performance update on the services 
provided by Ubico. 

8.  GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL UPDATE

To receive an update from the Council’s representative on matters 
considered at the last meeting (7 July 2021). 

9.  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
UPDATE

65 - 68

To receive an update from the Council’s representative on matters 
considered at the last meeting (9 June 2021). 

10.  FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT 2020/21 69 - 93

To consider the General Fund outturn for 2020/21, the reserves position 
as at 31 March 2021, the financing of the capital programme and the 
annual treasury management report and performance.

11.  CARBON REDUCTION ACTION PLAN 94 - 112

To consider the progress achieved in year one of the Council’s Carbon 
Reduction Action Plan, and the recommended year two action plan and to 
note the request to Council for a permanent Carbon Reduction 
Programme Officer post. 

12.  ANNUAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY REVIEW 2020/21 113 - 130

To consider progress made against delivery of the Workforce 
Development Strategy during 2020/21 and the actions planned for 
2021/22. 



Item Page(s)

3

13.  SEPARATE BUSINESS

The Chair will move the adoption of the following resolution:

That under Section 100(A)(4) Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Act.

14.  TRADE/COMMERCIAL WASTE SERVICE BUSINESS CASE UPDATE 131 - 137

(Exempt –Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 –Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

To consider the update on progress of the high-level implementation plan.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
TUESDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2021

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE
Councillors: G J Bocking, C L J Carter, K J Cromwell (Chair), P A Godwin, H C McLain,                      
P D McLain, H S Munro, J W Murphy (Vice-Chair), J K Smith, R J G Smith, P D Surman,                     
S Thomson, M J Williams and P N Workman plus one vacancy.

Substitution Arrangements 

The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting.

Recording of Meetings 

In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chair will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with. 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting 
will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting. 



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at the 
Council Offices, Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 8 June 2021 

commencing at 4:30 pm 
 

 
Present: 

 
Chair Councillor K J Cromwell 
Vice Chair Councillor J W Murphy 

 
and Councillors: 

 
G J Bocking, C L J Carter, P A Godwin, H C McLain, P D McLain, H S Munro, J K Smith,                     

R J G Smith, S Thomson and P N Workman 
 

also present: 
 

Councillor M A Gore 
 

OS.5 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

5.1  The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was advised to those present. 

5.2  The Chair welcomed the representatives from Severn Trent Water to the meeting 
and indicated that they would be giving a presentation at Agenda Item 7.  He also 
welcomed the Lead Member for Built Environment who was in attendance to 
observe the meeting. 

OS.6 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

6.1  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P D Surman and M J 
Williams.  There were no substitutions for the meeting.  

OS.7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

7.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 
July 2012. 

7.2  There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion. 

OS.8 MINUTES  

8.1  The Minutes of the meetings held on 6 April and 4 May 2021, copies of which had 
been circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 

 

 

1

Agenda Item 4



OS.08.06.21 

OS.9 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN  

9.1  Attention was drawn to the Executive Committee Forward Plan, circulated at Pages 
No. 10-18.  Members were asked to determine whether there were any questions 
for the relevant Lead Members and what support the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee could give to the work contained within the plan. 

9.2 The Head of Corporate Services advised that the Executive Committee Forward 
Plan would be further informed by the corporate list of policies and strategies due 
for review which was included at Agenda Item 9 of the current Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Agenda.  A Member noted that the parking strategy review was 
included within the pending items section of the plan and questioned whether this 
would be opened up for public consultation given that it was such a hot topic 
amongst members of the public.  In response, the Head of Finance and Asset 
Management explained that he was currently looking at the timetable for the review 
in terms of resource availability and hoped to restart the Working Group conducting 
the review in September/October.  The draft strategy would be taken to the 
Overview and Scrutiny and Executive Committees and would go out for public 
consultation later in the year. 

9.3  Accordingly, it was 

RESOLVED That the Executive Committee Forward Plan be NOTED.  

OS.10 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22  

10.1  Attention was drawn to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2021/11, circulated at Pages No. 19-28, which Members were asked to consider. 

10.2  It was 

RESOLVED  That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2021/22 be NOTED.  

OS.11 PRESENTATION FROM SEVERN TRENT WATER  

11.1  The Chair indicated that two representatives from Severn Trent Water had attended 
the meeting to give an update on the works that had been carried out to the Severn 
Ham as a result of the Scrutiny Review of Water Supply Outage undertaken in 
2019.   

11.2  The representatives from Severn Trent explained that, in terms of monitoring, an 
automated system was being used to oversee the mains under the Ham 24 hours 
per day, seven days a week, with a daily check carried out to ensure that any leaks 
across the Ham could be identified and repaired immediately; this system would 
remain until the works had been completed and the new mains were in place.  
Severn Trent operatives were currently on site and were making good progress.  
When they had last attended the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the 
representatives from Severn Trent had explained that it was intended to either 
replace or re-line the mid-level pipes across the Severn Ham.  One of the benefits of 
this was that it would create resilience in the pipes – this was not necessary but, 
given that it was a challenging site, there was always a risk of no supply events 
when the system failed.  Furthermore, the site was valuable in environmental terms 
- being a Site of Special Scientific Interest - and replacing the mains would 
significantly reduce the likelihood of leaks on the Ham which caused disruption 
when Severn Trent had to access the area to repair them; it would also reduce the 
risk of sudden bursts which caused even greater disturbance to the Ham for 
emergency repairs.  As such, Severn Trent had proceeded with the preferred option 
of replacing the pipes which offered the best long term solution in terms of 

2



OS.08.06.21 

disturbance to the site and operational risk.  Nevertheless, it remained a complex 
site on which to work and flooding and COVID-19 had made this particularly 
challenging over the last year.  Notwithstanding this, significant progress had been 
made since March 2021 with the main focus at this time being on the laying of the 
pipes which would be followed by pipe testing/sampling in August along with the 
initial reinstatement of three quarters of the working area.  Connections and 
commissioning of the new mains was planned for September and there would then 
be further reinstatement - Severn Trent was working closely with the Severn Ham 
Committee, Natural England and others in terms of how to do that.  The primary risk 
for delivery of the scheme was wet weather and flooded fields but, as things stood, 
there was no reason why the programme would not be completed on time.   

11.3 In terms of communications, Members were advised that Severn Trent recognised 
the valuable nature of the site and the importance of engaging with stakeholders to 
agree how best to carry out the work, reinstate the land and obtain various 
permissions.  Weekly updates were provided to the Severn Ham Committee which 
were uploaded to social media and posters were being put up within the information 
boards on site.  This had gone well to date and Severn Trent had received positive 
feedback about how they had engaged so it was hoped everyone had a good 
understanding of what they were doing and why.  Particular reference was made to 
the fact that Curlew inhabited the site and operatives were taking particular care to 
stay away from any nesting areas with bird dissuasion measures being 
implemented to discourage nesting in the working area.   

11.4  A Member questioned whether the connections and commissioning stage would 
involve any water outages for residents.  In response, the representative from 
Severn Trent confirmed that there were two mains pipes, one of which would be 
switched off and isolated whilst the other remained active meaning no loss of water 
for residents.  Another Member queried whether there had been any leaks from 
other pipes across the Ham and was advised that one leak had been picked up last 
summer which Severn Trent had responded to accordingly; there had been no 
further leaks since that time.  A Member sought assurance that all valves had now 
been located and were working properly as this was an issue that had been 
identified by the scrutiny review.  The representative from Severn Trent confirmed 
that this work had been done shortly after the original water outage incident and 
remained up to date and in place.   

11.5  The Chair thanked the representatives from Severn Trent for their informative 
presentation and their proactive response to the review of the water supply outage.  
It was 

RESOLVED That the update on the works carried out to the Severn Ham as a 
result of the Scrutiny Review of Water Supply Outage in 2019 be 
NOTED. 

OS.12 COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE TRACKER AND COVID-19 RECOVERY 
TRACKER - QUARTER FOUR 2020/21  

12.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 29-117, 
attached the performance management and COVID-19 recovery information for 
quarter four of 2020/21.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked to 
review and scrutinise the information and, where appropriate, identify any issues to 
refer to the Executive Committee for clarification or further action to be taken. 

 

 

 

 

3



OS.08.06.21 

12.2  Members were advised that this was the final quarterly monitoring report for 
2020/21 and represented the latest information in terms of the status of the actions 
set out in the Council Plan and the Corporate Recovery Plan.  Progress against 
delivering the objectives and actions for each of the six Council Plan priorities was 
reported through the performance tracker, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, 
which was a combined document that also included a set of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs).  In addition, a corporate COVID-19 recovery plan had been 
established based on the Council Plan priorities and a recovery plan tracker, 
attached at Appendix 2 to the report, had been created to monitor progress in 
delivering those actions and objectives.  Key financial information was usually 
reported alongside the tracker documents but, given the complexities of the year 
end closedown, this was not yet available and would be presented directly to the 
Executive Committee in July.   

12.3 Key actions for the quarter were highlighted at Paragraph 2.3 of the report and 
included the new long-term let of Cleeve Hill Golf Club; five homeless properties 
now being managed in-house by the Property team resulting in significant savings; 
development and implementation of a new digital platform with the bulky waste, 
missed bin and assisted waste collection services going live in April; and the 
Business Transformation team assisting with the implementation of a new bulky 
waste service which had reduced wait times from 5-6 weeks to just one week and 
had received very positive feedback from the public.  The Head of Corporate 
Services felt this demonstrated there had been some real successes within the 
quarter alongside the recovery from COVID-19.  Nevertheless, he reminded 
Members that, due to the complex nature of actions being delivered, it was 
inevitable that some would not progress as smoothly or as quickly as envisaged and 
the details of those actions, which related to the Joint Core Strategy, Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan and the planning service improvement plan, were set out at 
Paragraph 2.5 of the report.  Some actions within the Council Plan had been put on 
hold as staff resource had been deployed to the response and recovery from 
COVID-19 and they were outlined at Paragraph 2.6 of the report.  In terms of the 
KPIs, Members were informed that the status of each indicator was set out at 
Paragraph 3.2 of the report.  KPIs where performance was not as good as the 
previous year and/or where the target had not been achieved, were set out at 
Paragraph 3.3. of the report.  With regard to the COVID-19 recovery tracker, key 
activities to bring to Members’ attention were set out at Paragraph 4.2 of the report 
and included the successful reopening of Tewkesbury Leisure Centre on 12 April 
2021 in line with the government roadmap which meant that the financial recovery 
was likely to be quicker than had been anticipated.  Paragraph 4.3 of the report 
referenced those actions within the tracker which had not progressed as intended.  
The Head of Corporate Services advised that the Council Plan and Corporate 
Recovery Plan would be refreshed over the coming weeks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



OS.08.06.21 

12.4 During the debate which ensued, the following queries and comments were made in 
relation to the Council Plan and Recovery Plan trackers: 

Priority: Finance and Resources 

P91 – Action – Refocus a) 
Continue to work with 
partners to ensure adequate 
measures are in place on our 
high streets to enable social 
distancing – A Member 
pointed out that he had not 
seen any hand sanitiser or 
signage recently on the high 
streets and he queried 
whether it was still in place 
and who was responsible for 
its maintenance. 

The Head of Development Services 
explained that hand sanitisers had been 
installed in Tewkesbury, Bishop’s Cleeve and 
Winchcombe high streets but some had been 
vandalised and they had needed to be 
constantly repaired and refilled, plus the 
stickers had come loose during bad weather 
and had been blown away; as such, the 
decision had reluctantly been taken to 
remove them.  Spray paint was now being 
used on pavements for social distancing 
markers.  The Member suggested it would be 
beneficial to work with local businesses who 
could maintain hand sanitising stations 
outside of their own properties and could take 
them inside at the end of the day.  The Head 
of Development Services explained that the 
Council was the accountable body with 
money for such measures coming from the 
authority; furthermore, the hand sanitising 
stations were fixed to the pavements so could 
not be removed at the end of the day.  She 
confirmed that it was no longer intended to 
supply hand sanitiser in localities as people 
were now used to taking their own with them 
and using the ones provided within the shops 
and businesses in the High Streets. 

P44 – Objective 4 – Action a) 
Develop a business case to 
ensure our trade waste 
service operates more 
commercially – A Member 
noted that the recruitment 
process for the project 
manager had commenced 
and he questioned whether 
there was any update on that. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

In response, the Head of Community 
Services confirmed that the project manager 
post had been recruited to along with a 
Waste Services Manager to replace another 
member of staff who had recently left the 
authority. 

5



OS.08.06.21 

Priority: Economic Growth 

P47 – Objective 2 – Action a) 
Deliver employment land 
through allocating land in the 
Joint Core Strategy (JCS) 
and Tewkesbury Borough 
Plan – A Member indicated 
that every Parish Council 
meeting he had attended 
since he had joined the 
Council had highlighted 
concerns about the JCS and 
urban extensions within the 
borough and yet it seemed 
that the Council was at the 
mercy of developers as it was 
not meeting its quotas in 
terms of housing delivery so 
he questioned how the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee could input into 
that process.   

In addition, he questioned 
how Members could input into 
planning, where appropriate, 
in terms of what they might 
consider to be suitable 
housing design as another 
regular complaint from Parish 
Councils was in relation to the 
amount of homogenous 
development within the 
borough. 

The Head of Development Services clarified 
that the JCS was under review so there 
would be a number of opportunities for 
Members to get involved.  Work was ongoing 
with the Planning Policy Reference Panel and 
consideration was starting to be given to 
development opportunities and development 
type, urban extensions on new settlements 
and the quantum of development.   

In terms of housing design, the government 
had recognised that greater quality was 
needed and the national design guide was 
currently being consulted upon.  There was a 
clear desire to move away from standardised 
housing types in character areas and housing 
design was something that would be closely 
considered as part of the Council’s ambitious 
growth agenda with the Garden Town acting 
as one of the key drivers for changing the 
principles of design going forward.  She 
indicated that she would be happy to discuss 
both of these matters with the Member in 
more detail outside of the meeting and 
reminded the Committee that all Members 
were welcome to attend the Planning Policy 
Reference Panel where these issues would 
be discussed in more detail.  If Members so 
wished, she could also arrange a Member 
seminar on design in the future. 

P50 – Objective 3 – Action b) 
Bring forward plans for the 
redevelopment of Spring 
Gardens – A Member noted 
that the project had not yet 
been delivered but the 
reserve allocated had been 
spent. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
explained that up until early 2020, MACE 
consultants had been used by the Council to 
move this action forward; he confirmed that 
all of the works that had been paid for during 
that time had been completed. 

6



OS.08.06.21 

Priority: Housing and Communities 

P51 – Objective 4 – Action b) 
Promote through the Heritage 
Action Zone (HAZ) the 
heritage offer of Tewkesbury 
through the cultural 
consortium – A Member 
noted that one of the projects 
which would be covered as 
part of ‘Rise Up Tewkesbury 
Culture’ was setting up a 
‘youth space’ and he asked 
what this was. 

The Head of Development Services 
explained that, as part of the three year 
Heritage Action Zone programme, the 
Tewkesbury culture consortium – known as 
‘Tewkesbury Culture’ – had successfully 
secured funding from Historic England.  A 
number of working groups had been set-up 
as a result, one of which was an engagement 
group with Tewkesbury schools and youth 
groups who were concerned there was no 
central place for young people to get involved 
with conservation. As such, attempts were 
being made to identify a dedicated space 
within the High Street for 12-18 year olds, for 
instance, this could involve a trial pop-up 
youth centre in an empty shop.  The 
redeveloped front of Tewkesbury Methodist 
Church was a place where they could come 
together in the interim to build a strategy and 
programme of partnerships to engage young 
people in conservation and heritage within 
Tewkesbury. 

In response to a query as to whether a 
Heritage Action Zone could be set-up in any 
area, the Chief Executive clarified that a bid 
had been made to Historic England for 
funding which was specifically for historic 
towns and was why Tewkesbury had 
qualified; the Heritage Action Zone had come 
forward on that basis.   

P52 – Objective 4 – Action c) 
Celebrate with partners the 
significance of 2021 for 
Tewkesbury – A Member 
noted that the Council had 
awarded £25,000 toward the 
2021 celebrations and he 
questioned whether that was 
just for Tewkesbury Abbey.  
He also pointed out that 
Members had been told they 
would receive updates from 
the Community and 
Economic Development 
Manager on the 2021 
Committee and what was 
being done in that regard. 

A Member sought further 
information in respect of the 
son et lumiere. 

 
 

The Head of Development Services clarified 
that a steering group, which included 
Tewkesbury Abbey, the Medieval Society and 
others, was proposing that the money be 
spent on three key areas and she indicated 
that she would speak to the Community and 
Economic Development Manager to ensure 
Member Updates were sent out in a timely 
fashion. 

In terms of the son et lumiere, Members were 
informed that this project was being led by 
the Roses Theatre and a working group had 
been set-up to take it forward. The son et 
lumiere was proposed to be held at 
Tewkesbury Abbey on 3-4 November 2021; it 
would be a ticketed event which was 
expected to attract approximately 10,000 
visitors. 

7



OS.08.06.21 

P55 – Objective 1 – General - 
Deliver the housing needs of 
our communities – A Member 
raised concern that residents’ 
view was that affordable 
housing meant social housing 
as opposed to the wider 
scope, e.g. right to buy, 
partial lets etc. and he 
questioned how the definition 
of affordable housing could 
be addressed by the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, or other relevant 
Committees. 

The Head of Community Services advised 
that the definition of affordable housing was 
set by national planning policy and was linked 
to factors such as local housing rates etc.  
The point made by the Member had been 
recognised as a concern and the House of 
Commons was carrying out research as to 
what affordable housing was and whether it 
was truly affordable.  He indicated that the 
Council’s Housing Strategy was in the 
process of being reviewed and the revised 
strategy would be brought to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for consideration 
later in the year. 

P55 – Objective 1 – Action b) 
Finalise and adopt the 
Tewkesbury Borough Plan – 
A Member asked for an 
overview of the steps that 
needed to be taken to get 
from the current position to 
the adoption of the Borough 
Plan and she questioned 
what input Members would 
have into the process. 

The Head of Development Services advised 
that the next stage was receipt of the 
examination in public findings and a letter 
was expected from the Inspector within the 
next few weeks.  This would set out whether 
the Council needed to do further work or may 
suggest a number of modifications in order to 
make the plan sound; if it was the latter, it 
would be necessary to take any modifications 
to the Executive Committee and Council for 
approval for consultation and any 
representations received would go straight to 
the Inspector.  She clarified that any 
modifications the Inspector recommended 
would be to move the plan forward and, if the 
Council decided it did not wish to proceed 
with those modifications, this would 
effectively mean that it would not have a 
sound plan and the local plan would not be 
adopted. 

P59 – Objective 3 – Action a) 
Work with partners, 
infrastructure providers and 
developers to progress the 
delivery of key sites – With 
regard to the developments at 
South Churchdown and 
Brockworth, a Member 
sought clarification as to 
whether the Section 106 
funding had been received 
from developers. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Development Services 
explained that she would need to check the 
triggers for the Section 106 payments and 
whether the money had been paid and she 
would update the Member following the 
meeting. 

8



OS.08.06.21 

P65 – KPIs 12 and 13 – 
Percentage of ‘major’ 
applications determined 
within 13 weeks or alternative 
period agreed with the 
applicant and percentage of 
‘minor’ applications 
determined within eight 
weeks or alternative period 
agreed with the applicant – A 
Member noted that 
performance was significantly 
lower during quarter four 
compared to previous 
quarters and she sought an 
explanation for this. 

The Head of Development Services advised 
there were a number of contributing factors 
that had led to the downturn in performance 
and the team was working incredibly hard 
against a backdrop of changing how they 
worked.  She explained that certain 
applications took longer to determine, 
particularly those which needed to go to 
Planning Committee; the second lockdowns 
had meant that officers had been unable to 
undertake visits once again; and a number of 
staff had been off sick.  Nevertheless, she 
accepted that performance was a concern - 
this was one of the reasons for the review of 
the service that had commenced earlier in the 
year – and additional staffing resources were 
being brought in to assist the team. 

Another Member expressed the view that 
performance in relation to KPI 13 was 
particularly concerning – he could understand 
that ‘major’ applications would be more 
complex and time consuming given their 
nature but he was still unclear as to why 
determination of ‘minor’ applications was 
taking so long.  He noted there was an option 
to agree an extension of time with applicants 
and questioned how much worse the figures 
would be if that was not possible.  From his 
perspective, extending a house was likely to 
be a very significant and important part of an 
individual’s life and one of the roles of the 
Planning team was to make this process as 
simple as possible.  He was especially 
concerned at comments that had been made 
to him about applicants not being able to 
reach officers or find out the status of their 
applications and this was something which 
must be urgently addressed.  The Head of 
Development Services undertook to look into 
this further to establish response rates in 
terms of officers getting back to customers. 

P68/69 – KPIs 16,17 and 18 
– Investigate category B 
cases within five working 
days, investigate category C 
cases within 10 working days 
and investigate category D 
cases within 15 working days 
– A Member raised concern 
regarding enforcement 
performance.   

The Head of Development Services advised 
that a category A case, as detailed at Page 
No. 67 (KPI 15), had taken up a lot of officer 
time and there had also been an increase in 
the number of cases with more being 
reported over the last few months.  The 
Council had unsuccessfully tried to recruit to 
the vacant Senior Enforcement Officer role 
early last year and that post would shortly be 
re-advertised.  

Another Member indicated that he had 
previously requested that the email 
Councillors were sent regarding enforcement 
cases in their area be updated to include 

9



OS.08.06.21 

information about the action taken and the 
reasons behind that as currently it only gave 
the address which was very unhelpful.  The 
Head of Development Services confirmed 
that consideration was being given to an 
enforcement tracker which would be available 
on the Member area of the intranet; 
unfortunately this had not yet been completed 
but she provided assurance that it was an 
action for the Business Transformation 
Officer and she undertook to find out the 
timetable for delivery. The Chief Executive 
advised that officers were currently looking at 
a corporate system for tracking Member 
questions in order to understand when they 
were not being answered and to chase up 
responses from a corporate point of view.  In 
terms of enforcement, he acknowledged that 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had 
raised concerns before and officers had given 
a commitment to providing Members with 
feedback on enforcement cases; however, 
that was not what had happened and he 
provided assurance that this would be 
pursued as a matter of urgency. 

A Member noted that category B enforcement 
cases were defined as development causing, 
or likely to cause, irreparable harm or 
damage and she questioned whether the 
Council was responsible if these were not 
dealt with in the timescales.  The Head of 
Development Services explained that the 
situation would be assessed and responded 
to appropriately – for instance, if work to a 
listed building had been carried out five years 
earlier, the response required was not the 
same as if the work had just commenced.  
She assured Members that in the latter 
situation, officers would respond very quickly.   

Priority: Customer First 

P71 – Objective 1 – Action c) 
Deliver the planning service 
improvement plan – A 
Member acknowledged that a 
new review had commenced 
in April and questioned when 
it was likely to be finished and 
whether it would be brought 
to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration. 

The Head of Development Services 
confirmed that consultants had been 
commissioned to undertake a review of the 
systems, processes and procedures within 
the Development Management service.  The 
report was expected in July from which an 
action plan would need to be produced and 
November was the target date for that.  It was 
proposed to use Transform Working Group 
as the vehicle for updating Members on the 
actions arising from the review.  The Chief 
Executive indicated that, should Members 
feel it appropriate, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee may wish to recommend to the 
Executive Committee that delivery of the 

10



OS.08.06.21 

action plan arising from the review be 
monitored by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  Members agreed this would be 
appropriate and that this should be 
recommended to the Executive Committee 
when it received the action plan arising from 
the review. 

In response to a query as to whether the 
report would make recommendations in 
respect of new staffing structures and 
systems for the Development Management 
service, the Chief Executive indicated that it 
was not clear at this stage exactly what the 
report would recommend but it was expected 
that it would make recommendations in terms 
of how the planning service should operate in 
order to improve performance.  The service 
had some very good staff who worked 
extremely hard on behalf of the Council but 
there were issues with the current systems 
within the service and performance had 
fluctuated over the year due to a number of 
factors.  The consultants that had been 
commissioned were planning professionals 
with knowledge of best practice across the 
country so were well placed to assess the 
current structures and systems and make 
recommendations on the best way of 
operating the service now and in the future; 
this may or may not include staffing 
structures but the main point was ensuring 
that the right resources were in place and that 
would be addressed when the report and 
recommendations came forward. 

In response to a query as to whether there 
were any quick wins which could be achieved 
between now and November when the action 
plan would be available, the Head of 
Development Services confirmed that it was 
hoped to recruit to Senior Planning Officer 
and Enforcement Officer posts over the next 
few weeks as well as securing some 
additional support from temporary posts to 
assist with the current officer caseload.  The 
Chief Executive reiterated that provision 
could be made for additional resources in the 
long term depending upon the outcome of the 
review. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

11



OS.08.06.21 

P78 – KPI 26 and 27 – 
Percentage of council tax and 
National Non-Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) collected – A 
Member noted that COVID-19 
had negatively impacted 
council tax and business 
rates collection and he 
questioned whether it was 
anticipated that this could be 
recovered when the courts re-
opened. 

The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
stressed that the Council always fully 
intended to recover any debts owed to the 
housing benefit and revenue section and any 
other sundry debtors; however, 
circumstances may dictate that some debts 
were irrecoverable.  Notwithstanding this, he 
advised that the impact over the last year was 
not as significant as expected and the 
government had provided funding to support 
the position on council tax and business 
rates.  He gave assurance that the Council 
would pursue collection via the normal 
processes as soon as it was able.  The Head 
of Corporate Services indicated that, in May 
2021, the Council had taken a £1,800 
summons for non-payment of council tax and 
£700 of that had now been paid.  He felt it 
would be a couple of years before there was 
a clear picture of the impact of COVID-19 on 
debt recovery. 

P79 – KPI 28 – Average 
number of sick days per full 
time equivalent – A Member 
was pleased to see that the 
average number of sick days 
had reduced quite 
significantly from 12.62 to 
9.68 days and he questioned 
whether this included COVID-
19 related absences. 

The Head of Corporate Services confirmed 
that 168 days had been lost to COVID-19 
absence and they were included within the 
figures; in terms of self-isolation, whether 
those figures were included depended on if 
the person was sick or not.  The Member 
indicated that, if the COVID-19 related 
absences were removed from the figures, the 
average number of sick days would actually 
be around 8 which was in line with the local 
target so that was a great achievement. 

Priority: Sustainable Environment 

P86 – Objective 2 – Action b) 
Improve bio-diversity across 
the borough and educate 
communities on its benefits – 
A Member noted that this 
action had been deferred for 
six months; however, only 
Grange Field was referenced 
in the tracker and she asked 
what other biodiversity 
schemes were being 
deferred. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Development Services 
undertook to ask the Community and 
Economic Development Manager to circulate 
a list following the meeting. 

12



OS.08.06.21 

P88 – KPI 32 – Number of 
reported enviro-crimes – A 
Member raised concern that 
the number of reported 
enviro-crimes was particularly 
high and he questioned 
whether this could be 
attributed to an increase in 
reporting as he was aware 
there had been a drive to 
encourage that amongst 
members of the public, 
particularly in Brockworth. 

The Head of Community Services advised 
that, unfortunately, the increase was not due 
to greater reporting and explained that there 
was considerable flytipping across the county 
which was significantly adding to officer 
workloads.  Discussions were taking place 
with Gloucestershire County Council around 
a countywide awareness campaign and he 
confirmed that Tewkesbury Borough Council 
was still doing all it could to deter people in 
terms of issuing Fixed Penalty Notices, 
advertising etc; however, the courts had been 
closed due to COVID-19 which meant it had 
been unable to take any prosecutions and, 
although there were some pending, it was 
difficult to balance the increased workload of 
those carrying out the investigations.  One of 
the conversations with the County Council 
had been around the booking system 
currently in place for the Household 
Recycling Centres and whether that had 
contributed to increased flytipping and 
officers would make a case for it being 
changed should that be shown to be correct.  
A Member indicated that she was amazed by 
how quickly any reported flytipping was being 
removed and she had found this very 
impressive.  In response, the Head of 
Community Services advised that this was 
due to a combination of the new system in 
place and the fact that the bulky waste 
service was no longer undertaken by Ubico 
which had freed up more capacity to pick up 
flytipping. 

Another Member went on raise concern that a 
lot of litter pickers were frustrated that they 
were unable to carry out litter picking on 
certain roads.  He referred to a specific case 
in Brockworth where 12 fly tips had been left 
for several weeks on a particular section of 
the bypass, with litter spread all across the 
road and down the verges, but nothing could 
be done for at least another month whilst 
Tewkesbury Borough Council obtained the 
relevant permissions and he questioned 
whether anything could be done to speed up 
this process.  In response, the Head of 
Community Services explained that the 
authority had a statutory duty to close certain 
roads in order for litter picking to be 
undertaken due to health and safety and, 
unfortunately, this did not happen overnight.  
There was a process to go through with the 
County Council which included going out to 
consultation and it was expensive; 
nevertheless, road closures were 

13



OS.08.06.21 

programmed in regularly for the locations 
which were known to be problematic.  He 
stressed that volunteer litter pickers would not 
be insured without these road closures and 
the position would be taken away from 
anyone found to be litter picking without the 
necessary closures in place.  The Head of 
Community Services indicated that he would 
speak to the County Council to see if there 
was a faster way to obtain a road closure and 
would report back to Members.  Furthermore, 
should the Member want him to attend a 
community group meeting to explain why that 
particular road closure was taking so long, he 
would be more than happy to do so. 

 12.5 Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED           1. That the performance management information and COVID-
19 recovery information for quarter four of 2020/21 be NOTED. 

2. That it be RECOMMENDED TO THE EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
monitor delivery of the action plan arising from the review of 
the systems and procedures of the Development Management 
service. 

OS.13 CORPORATE LIST OF POLICIES AND STRATEGIES  

13.1  Attention was drawn to the report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at 
Pages No. 118-126, which asked Members to consider the corporate list of policies 
and strategies, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, which would inform the 
Executive Committee Work Programme during 2021/22. 

13.2  The Head of Corporate Services explained that this was an annual report, although 
it had not been brought to the Committee in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had previously requested that a list of 
policies and strategies be produced to give an overview of what would be coming 
forward during the year for consideration by the Executive Committee and to identify 
areas where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may be able to provide support.  
The list at Appendix 1 to the report included those policies and strategies that had 
been put forward by the Heads of Service as being due for review during 2021/22 
and this would be used to populate the Executive Committee Forward Plan.  In due 
course, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may wish to review some of the 
policies and strategies within the list and that could be built into the Work 
Programme of the Committee; however, it was to be borne in mind that some of the 
policies and strategies would be considered by other Committees, for instance, the 
Risk Management Strategy would be taken to the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and it was important to avoid “double handling”. 

13.3  It was 

RESOLVED That the corporate list of policies and strategies attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report be NOTED. 

 

 

 

14



OS.08.06.21 

OS.14 CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE - PROGRESS OF ACTION PLAN  

14.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 127-152, 
provided an update on the progress that had been made in delivering the corporate 
peer challenge action plan.  Members were asked to consider the report. 

14.2  The Head of Corporate Services reminded Members that Tewkesbury Borough 
Council had undergone a Local Government Association corporate peer challenge 
during March 2020 and the final report was attached at Appendix 1 to the 
Committee report.  Whilst the report was very positive about the Council’s 
performance, as with all challenges, areas for improvement had been identified and 
an internal action plan comprising the five key recommendations had been 
approved by Council in December 2020 where responsibility for monitoring delivery 
of the actions had been delegated to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The 
action plan was attached at Appendix 2 to the Committee report with progress to 
date set out in the final column.  It was noted that the actions were at various stages 
of delivery with some actions having been completed, some making good progress 
and others being deferred.  It was hoped that all actions would be complete when 
the report was brought back to the Committee on 23 November 2021.  

14.3  A Member felt that the Communications team should be congratulated as there had 
been a notable increase in the amount of communications about what was 
happening at the Council.  He drew attention to Page No. 149 of the report, 
recommendation 5, which related to reviewing the timings of meetings so that all 
Members could contribute effectively and he questioned whether now was an 
appropriate time to consider whether Members were happy with the timing of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  In response, the Head of Democratic Services 
advised that, should Members wish to discuss the timing of the Committee, an item 
could be put on the Agenda for the next meeting in order for that debate to take 
place.  The Chief Executive explained that officers had been surprised this had 
come forward as a peer review recommendation; he clarified that there were no 
formal start times for Committee meetings - the timing was down to the individual 
Committee or Working Group to determine the best time to meet.  He recognised 
there had been a couple of occasions when the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda had been quite heavy, which was not helpful to anyone, so officers were 
aware of the need to take care not to overload Agenda and to discuss management 
of the meetings with the Chair.  It was recognised that the timing of meetings was 
unlikely to suit every Member of the Committee.  The Chair hoped that Members 
would approach him if they had any issues with the timing or length of meetings; he 
provided assurance that careful consideration was given to the work programme 
and the weighting of Agenda but there were inevitably times when a longer Agenda 
was unavoidable.  One Member indicated that he liked the fact that Council and 
Committee meetings were at a variety of times as this gave options for different 
Members to attend – he had opted to sit on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
partly as the timing of the meetings suited him best. 

14.4  In terms of Page No. 144, recommendation 1, a Member noted that the final column 
stated that the Council would need to budget for the shortfall in housing reward in 
the coming years following the phasing out of New Homes Bonus, and he 
questioned whether the net position of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy was known as yet.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management advised 
that the last Medium Term Financial Strategy was approved in January 2021 and 
this had highlighted the withdrawal of New Homes Bonus; however, the 
replacement scheme and its value to Tewkesbury Borough Council was still 
unknown – consultation had closed in April and officers were awaiting feedback 
from the government.  The Member drew attention to the recommendation around 
the Garden Town Programme and the Council being dependent on the funding 
being secured in order to deliver the bridge and he questioned whether the first 

15



OS.08.06.21 

draw down had happened by December 2020 as expected.  The Head of Finance 
and Asset Management confirmed that the first draw down had occurred, albeit 
slightly late but still within the financial year.  With regard to recommendation 2, the 
Member noted that Page No. 147 stated that thought should be given to succession 
planning in order to fulfil the Council’s leadership responsibilities and he queried 
whether any progress had been made in that regard.  In response, the Chief 
Executive explained that a report was being taken to the Council meeting on 22 
June 2021 which would address some of those issues.  Finally, the Member noted 
that recommendation 7 included an action to hold a session with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to obtain its views on how to maximise the value of the 
Committee and he questioned whether the implementation date could be brought 
forward from December 2021.  The Head of Corporate Services clarified that he had 
intended that this would be delivered by December 2021 at the latest and he 
planned to hold the session towards the end of the summer.   

12.5 It was 

RESOLVED That the progress made in delivering the corporate peer 
challenge action plan be NOTED. 

OS.15 PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR HOUSING SCHEME  

15.1 The report of the Head of Community Services, circulated at Pages No. 153-159, 
provided details of the private rented sector housing scheme.  Members were asked 
to consider the achievements of the scheme and note that it had now closed. 

15.2  The Head of Community Services explained that, in March 2019, a successful bid 
had been made to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) for funding for a pilot project which met the criteria of the Private Sector 
Access Fund which supported innovative measures that provided additional support 
for single homeless people and/or reduced the number of households in temporary 
accommodation.  The pilot scheme was around encouraging landlords in the private 
rented sector to take tenants on a lower income and involved all of the district 
councils in Gloucestershire as well as West Oxfordshire which was part of 
Homeseeker Plus, the mechanism used for bidding on properties.  The appendix to 
the report provided a summary of the scheme and demonstrated that Tewkesbury 
Borough Council had supported 34 households into private rented accommodation 
at a cost of £45,694.16, mainly through providing rent in advance and deposits.  The 
fact that it was a pilot scheme was important as it had meant that each authority 
could use different methodology which could be evaluated to establish what worked 
and what did not work.  Members were informed there had been varying degrees of 
success as the pilot had secured 234 properties; however, feedback from landlords 
had suggested they did not really need financial incentives from the authority in a 
buoyant housing market.  In light of this, whilst officers were always looking to 
improve relationships with private sector landlords, it was not proposed to actively 
take the scheme forward as a project.  It should be noted that Tewkesbury Borough 
Council already had schemes in place to assist landlords and tenants e.g. rent 
deposits and rent in advance. 

15.3   A Member indicated that it was his understanding that one of the landlords’ main 
concerns was how much support they would get from the Council if they had any 
issues with tenants and he asked whether there had been any discussion with 
landlords as part of the pilot scheme.  In response, the Head of Community 
Services clarified that this scheme was very much about the Council supporting 
tenants to maintain their tenancy but he felt that it had also helped the relationship 
with landlords which officers would look to maintain going forward.  Another Member 
raised concern that he was aware of rented properties being snapped up by a 
collection of financial companies who were then changing the use to holiday lets, 
therefore depleting the housing stock, and he questioned whether this had been 

16



OS.08.06.21 

happening in Tewkesbury Borough.  The Head of Community Services advised that 
a countywide review of the condition of private sector housing stock was about to be 
undertaken so this issue may be flagged up as part of that.  There were holiday lets 
within the borough, which were encouraged in terms of supporting tourism etc.; 
however, it was also important for the Council to maintain housing which it could 
control as property for its residents so he undertook to try to find out if this was a 
particular problem. 

15.4 It was 

RESOLVED That the achievements of the private rented sector housing pilot 
scheme be NOTED. 

OS.16 SEPARATE BUSINESS  

16.1  The Chair proposed, and it was  

RESOLVED That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items on the grounds that they involve the likely discussion of 
exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.   

OS.17 SEPARATE MINUTES  

17.1  The separate Minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2021, copies of which had 
been circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 The meeting closed at 6:20 pm 

 
 

17



1
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 2021/22

REGULAR ITEM:
 Forward Plan – To note the forthcoming items.

Additions to 7 July 2021
 Climate Change Strategy Annual Report. 
 Parliamentary Constituency Boundaries Consultation. 

Deletions from 7 July 2021


Committee Date: 1 September 2021     

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Financial Update – Quarter 
One 2021/22.

To consider the quarterly budget 
position.

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No.

Proceeds of Crime and 
Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy. 

To approve the Money Laundering 
Policy following a recommendation 
from the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Head of Corporate Services. Yes – Moved from June meeting 
to enable consideration by the 
Audit and Governance Committee 
in July. 

Internet and Social Media 
Investigation Policy. 

To approve the Internet and Social Media 
Investigation Policy following a 
recommendation from the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Shop Front Design 
Guidance Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD).

To agree the document for the 
purposes of consultation. 

Planning Policy Manager. Yes, from July to enable the 
inclusion of comments from 
Members. 

Heritage Strategy. To seek approval for consultation Planning Policy Manager. Yes, from July to enable the 
inclusion of comments from 
Members.

18

A
genda Item

 5



2
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date: 1 September 2021     

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Managing Contractors 
Safely Policy.

To approve the Policy. Head of Community Services. No. 

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-Off 
Report (Quarterly).

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)).

19



3
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date: 6 October 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
One 2021/22.

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter one performance 
management and recovery information.

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Fixed penalty policy and 
fine levels for 
environmental offences.

To approve the fixed penalty policy 
and the fine levels for environmental 
offences. 

Head of Community Services. No. 

20



4
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date:  17 November 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Financial Update – Quarter 
Two 2020/21.

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No.

Absence Management 
Policy

To approve the Absence Management 
Policy.

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Redundancy and 
Redeployment policy

To approve the Policy. Head of Corporate Services. No

Allocations Policy To approve the Policy. Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Tree Safety Management 
Policy. 

To approve the Policy. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Environmental Health 
Enforcement Policy.

To approve the Environmental Health 
Enforcement Policy.

Head of Community Services. No. 

Planning Service Review 
Action Plan.

To consider the Planning Service 
Review Action Plan. 

Head of Development Services. No. 

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly).

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)).

21



5
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date:  5 January 2022   

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (Annual).

To recommend to Council the adoption of 
the five-year MTFS which describes the 
financial environment the Council is 
operating in and the pressures it will face 
in delivering its services and a balanced 
budget over the period.

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No.

Housing Strategy Monitoring 
Report (Annual).

To approve the Housing Strategy 
Monitoring Report.  

Housing Services Manager. No.

Treasury and Capital 
Management (Annual) 
(Policies including Capital 
Strategy, Investment 
Strategy, Minimum Revenue 
Provisions and Flexible use 
of Capital receipts).

To approve and recommend approval to 
Council, a range of statutorily required 
polices and strategies relating to treasury 
and capital management. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Social Media Policy and 
Guidelines.

To approve the Social Media Policy 
and Guidelines. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Discretionary Rate Relief 
Policy.

To consider the Discretionary Rate 
Relief Policy.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Procurement Strategy. To approve the Procurement Strategy. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Sandbag Policy. To approve the Sandbag Policy. Head of Community Services. No. 

22



6
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date: 2 February 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Budget 2022/23 (Annual). To recommend a budget for 2022/23 to 
the Council. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No.

Financial Update - Quarter 
Three 2021/22.

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No.

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
Two 2021/22.

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter two performance 
management and recovery information.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly).

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)).

23



7
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date: 2 March 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Digital Strategy. To approve the Digital Strategy. Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Asset Management 
Strategy.

To approve the Asset Management 
Strategy.

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.

No. 

Housing Strategy. To approve the Housing Strategy. Head of Community Services. No. 

Action for Affordable 
Warmth 2013-18.

To consider and approve. Head of Community Services. No. 

Tewkesbury Borough 
Council domestic waste 
and recycling collection 
services policy and 
procedures.

To consider and approve. Head of Community Services. No. 

Equalities and Diversity 
Policy.

To approve the Equalities and 
Diversity Policy.

Head of Corporate Services. Moved from September meeting to 
enable a bid for consultant funding 
to undertake work on equalities. 

24



8
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

Committee Date: 30 March 2022    

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
Three 2021/22.

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter three performance 
management and recovery information.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Council Plan 2020/24 
Refresh (Annual).

To consider the Council Plan and make a 
recommendation to Council.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

High Level Service Plan 
Summaries (Annual).

To consider the key activities of each 
service grouping during 2021/22.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Car Parking Strategy. To approve the Car Parking Strategy. Head of Development Services. No. 

Economic Development 
and Tourism Strategy.

To approve the Strategy. Head of Development Services. No. 25



9
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold

PENDING ITEMS

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Date Item Added to 
Pending 

Spring Gardens Regeneration 
Phase 1a report.

To agree the recommendation of the preferred option for the regeneration of 
Spring Gardens.

4 September 2019

Parking Strategy Review. To consider the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 6 January 2020

Parking Strategy Review. To consider the statutory responses to the Parking Strategy Review. 6 January 2020

Council Plan 2020/24 Refresh 
(Annual).

To consider the Council Plan and make a recommendation to Council. 3 February 2021

COVID-19 Corporate 
Recovery Plan Refresh 

To consider the COVID-19 Corporate Recovery Plan. 3 February 2021

26



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

REGULAR ITEMS:
 Executive Committee Forward Plan
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22

Additions to 13 July 2021 
 Financial Outturn Report 2020/21 – separate report as this was not reported as part of the Council Plan Performance Tracker and COVID-19 

Recovery Tracker report on 8 June 2021.

Deletions from 13 July 2021  
 Gloucestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Update – Meeting on 15 June was an induction session for new Members therefore 

nothing of note to report.  The next meeting is on 13 July 2021 (the same day as Overview and Scrutiny Committee) so an update report will 
be circulated separately by email on this occasion.

Committee Date: 7 September 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Citizens’ Advice Bureau 
Presentation

To consider the annual update on 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau activity in the 
borough.

Economic and Community 
Development Manager

No.

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
One 2021/22 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management and recovery information 
and, where appropriate, to require 
response or action from the Executive 
Committee.

Head of Corporate Services No.

27

A
genda Item

 6



Committee Date: 7 September 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Lessons learned review 
following the COVID-19 
pandemic

To receive a report setting out lessons 
learned in responding to and recovery 
from COVID-19.

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Development Services 
Improvement Plan

To receive an update on the outcomes of 
the customer satisfaction survey on 
experience of planning application 
process and the pre-application planning 
advice service and, if relevant, an 
explanation on any outstanding actions.

Head of Development Services Yes – deferred from 16 June 2020. 
Improvement plan to be reviewed by 
new Head of Development Services. 
New improvement plan to be 
developed. Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee have requested that 
delivery of the action plan is 
included in their work programme. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (13 July 2021).

N/A No. – Update to be circulated via 
email following the meeting on 13 
July as the information will be 
outdated by the time the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meet in 
September.

28



Committee Date: 12 October 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Economic Development and 
Tourism Strategy

To consider the progress made against 
the delivery of the Economic 
Development and Tourism Strategy – 
year 4 (2021/22 actions) 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager

No.

Complaints Report To consider the annual update to provide 
assurance that complaints are managed 
effectively.

Head of Corporate Services No.

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (14 September 2021).

N/A No.

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (15 September 2021).

N/A No.

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (28 September 2021).

N/A No.

29



Committee Date: 23 November 2021

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

LGA Peer Challenge Report 
Action Plan

To monitor implementation of the action 
plan (six monthly).

Head of Corporate Services No.

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (20 October and 17 
November 2021).

N/A No.

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (16 November 2021).

N/A No.

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (3 November 2021).

N/A No.

30



Committee Date:  11 January 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
Two 2021/22 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management and recovery information 
and, where appropriate, to require 
response or action from the Executive 
Committee.

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

31



Committee Date:  8 February 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Annual Growth Hub report To receive a report on the performance 
of the Growth Hub and the support given 
to the economic growth of the borough. 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager.

No.

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 2022/23 
Financial Contribution

To conduct the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
involvement in the Gloucestershire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in order to authorise payment of the 
Council’s contribution to the running 
costs for the forthcoming year. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update

To receive an update from the 
Council’s representative on matters 
considered at the last meeting (4 
February 2022).

N/A No.

32



Committee Date: 8 March 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Council Plan Performance 
Tracker and COVID-19 
Recovery Tracker – Quarter 
Three 2021/22.

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management and recovery information 
and, where appropriate, to require 
response or action from the Executive 
Committee.

Head of Corporate Services No.

33



Committee Date: 5 April 2022

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required  

Customer Care Strategy To consider the progress made against 
the actions within the Customer Care 
Strategy during 2021/22 and to endorse 
the action plan for 2022/23.

Head of Corporate Services No.

Communications Strategy 
2020-24

To consider the progress made against 
the actions within the Communications 
Strategy during 2021/22 and to endorse 
the action plan for 2022/23.

Corporate Services Manager No.

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 
2021/22

To approve the annual report as required 
by the Council’s Constitution to ensure 
that the activities of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are promoted, both 
internally and publicly, to reinforce 
transparency and accountability in the 
democratic process.

Head of Corporate Services. No.

Depot Services Working 
Group

To receive an annual update on the 
progress of the Depot Services Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services. No

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 
2022/23

To consider and approve the forthcoming 
Committee work programme. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

34



Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update

To receive an update from the 
Council’s representative on matters 
considered at the last meeting (25 
March 2022).

N/A No.

35



PENDING ITEMS

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Date Item Added to 
Pending

Housing Strategy 2022 
onwards 

To consider the strategy prior to approval by Executive Committee and Council. 24 November 2020

Parking Strategy Review Not completed during 2020/21 24 November 2020

Community Services 
Improvement Review

To consider the progress made against the Community Services Improvement Plan. Moved 
from 14 July 2020 and 9 March 2021. Little activity has taken place over recent months due 
to COVID-19.

14 July 2020

Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme Review

To set up an Overview and Scrutiny Committee Working Group to review the scheme and 
make a recommendation to the Executive Committee/Council. (deferred from 2020/21) 

April 2020

Update on Local Policing 
Arrangements

To receive an update from the Police on local arrangements. 13 October 2020

Advice and Information 
Centres (AIC) 

To set up an Overview and Scrutiny Committee Working Group to review the scheme and 
make a recommendation to the Executive Committee.  (deferred from 2020/21)

-------------------

Active Gloucestershire 
Report on the progress of 
its ‘We Can Move’ Project. 

To report on an annual basis following the Council’s decision to provide funding to the 
project of £10,000 per year for five years. Annual reports will commence once the project is 
up and running. 

3 March 2021 following 
Executive Committee. 

36



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 13 July 2021 

Subject: Ubico Report 2020/21 

Report of: Interim Waste Contracts Manager 

Corporate Lead: Head of Community Services 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

This report provides the annual update on the Ubico contract for waste and recycling, street 
cleaning and grounds maintenance services. It covers the service overview, financial 
performance, fleet management, health and safety performance and a summary of projects. 
Appendix 1 contains the full performance report which is referred to within this report.  

Despite being in the midst of a global pandemic, Ubico has maintained good performance 
during the year with improvement to the numbers of missed bin collections and repeat missed 
bin collections along with delivering an underspend on the contract costs. 

Key pieces of data are highlighted within the body of this report and the full detail is contained 
within the full report at Appendix 1. 

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the 2020/21 outturn performance update on the services provided by 
Ubico. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The report allows Members to monitor the service and financial performance of our waste and 
recycling contractor Ubico Ltd. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives regular 
updates on the performance of Ubico Ltd. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

Nothing specific arising because of this report. 

Legal Implications: 

Nothing specific arising because of this report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

There are no significant new risks or opportunities arising within the period under review. 

 
 

37

Agenda Item 7



Performance Management Follow-up: 

Performance is monitored and managed in conjunction with the Gloucestershire Joint Waste 
Team (until December 2019) through the monthly client meetings, Environmental Service 
Partnership Board (ESPB), Depot Services Working Group and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council has two new contract officers, one for Waste Management and 
one for street cleansing and grounds maintenance, and recruitment of a Principal Trade Waste 
Officer and Waste Contracts Manager has been successfully completed. 

Environmental Implications:  

Nothing specific arising because of this report. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Ubico has been delivering the Council’s waste, recycling, and street cleansing services 
since 1 April 2015. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the performance of 
the contract on an annual basis. 

1.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives the annual report and regular updates 
on service and financial performance.  

2.0 PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

2.1 Performance information is collated by Ubico and presented to the Council on a regular 
basis at meetings - including monthly contract meetings and quarterly ESPB meetings - 
and the opportunity is made available for colleagues from the client-side monitoring, 
Head of Service and Finance Officers to discuss the monthly financial position 
statements and data.  

2.2 Monthly reports consist of service detail including missed bin information, formal 
complaint resolutions, health and safety information, risks, and progress on projects. 
Quarterly reports to ESPB inform the Council of all the service-related performance 
information found in Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



3.0 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

3.1 At the end of the financial year, the full year spend on the Tewkesbury contract stood at 
£3,897,863. The final spend represents a contract saving of £160,455, 

3.2 Notable savings were recorded in the financial year as being:  

I. Diesel cost – full year saving of £52,000.  Diesel cost on all contracts were 
impacted by price deflation.  It is not expected that this will translate into a saving 
in the year ending March 2022 as fuel prices start to increase. 

II. The Tewkesbury contract, having been sorely hit by tyre costs in the year ended 
March 2019, had a high budget for tyres for the year ended March 2021, being 
£108,000. Total spend came in at £67,000.  The tyre policy changed during the 
year; they are now changed at 2mm tread, increasing their longevity compared to 
the previous policy of changing them at 3mm tread. 

III. Vehicle repairs - for the year ending March 2022 the budget sat at £165,000, 
compared to an actual spend of £147,000 and £170,000 for the year ending 
March 2020. This cost code represents an area of risk in the Tewkesbury 
Borough Council budget due to the age of the vehicles.  

3.3 The level of financial information provided by Ubico to the Council has continued to 
improve allowing Officers access to more detail of spends and forecasts. This has been 
coupled with greater partnership working between the organisations allowing for 
discussion and meetings to be held on a regular basis should the monthly report 
information require further discussion.  

3.4 The budget setting process for the following financial year takes place with the Council 
Officers and Ubico representatives in quarter three to ensure the budget is agreed in 
time and in line with the timescales for the Council’s budget setting process.  

4.0 FRONTLINE SERVICES PERFORMANCE 

4.1 During the year, the collection accuracy and performance improved resulting in the 
number of missed bins reducing. The performance is outlined month by month in 
Appendix 1 including overall performance accuracy and performance by service area. 
The food waste service has suffered the highest number of missed collections, garden 
waste services have seen the largest reduction in missed collections reducing from 1,531 
to 638. 

4.2 The overall collection accuracy is just short of the target of 99.95% with an outturn of 
99.93%. This is 0.02% up on the outturn for the previous year. The target equates to 
maximum 50 missed collections per week. The target does not account for bins reported 
as missed but which were either not presented on time or not emptied due to issues such 
as contamination. 

4.3 Repeat missed collections have fallen and are well below target which is a positive step. 
This indicates a good level of collection service satisfaction as residents experience 
fewer regular repeat missed bin collections which then require reporting to the Council 
repeatedly – this is now below the target of 10 per month for the year.  Repeat missed 
assisted collections have fallen from a high of 54 last year to just nine in 2020/21.  An 
assisted collection is where the crew access the properties of elderly or infirm residents 
to collect their bins. Work has been carried out to ensure the crews are checking the lists 
of assisted collections to make sure they are collected.  

 

 

39



4.4 Street cleansing reports have been previously received through Firmstep and sent 
directly to Ubico. These are then directed to the relevant crew for actioning. The 
response rate is good with most of the reports being completed and closed within the 
timeframes. This reporting system has now been replaced with a better system which 
was built by the in-house IT department.   The Business Transformation Team supported 
this work. 

4.5 During this year the grounds maintenance service has not had the best of times with the 
end of last year being very wet and causing major issues for the final cuts of the season; 
this year’s season started with much of the same where the mowing teams were unable 
to access many areas due to rain and flooding. Nonetheless, grass cutting has been 
complete with an average B grade standard. There has been an increase in reports from 
members of the public regarding the standard of grass cutting. This includes increased 
Report It / dashboard requests and increased emails and phone call which are time 
consuming and an inefficient use of resources. 

4.6 Formal complaints regarding service delivery can be for a variety of reasons such as 
crew behaviour, damage to property, missed collections and issues with the collections, 
how bins and caddies are returned to the property or handled by the crews. Where 
formal complaints relate to crew behaviour or collection day related issues, the CCTV 
from the vehicle is reviewed where possible and action is taken. If crews are regularly 
missing the same bins or caddies, these are put on the supervisors’ checklists to make 
sure they are not missed again. The use of these lists has decreased in this reporting 
period. There has been a significant decrease in the number of formal complaints across 
all services, including grounds maintenance, when compared to the previous year.   

 

 

 

SERVICE 2019-20 2020-21 

Waste and street cleansing services 86 26 

Ground’s maintenance 9 6 

5.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY 

5.1 A positive trend is the increase of near miss reports/safety concerns. These are reports 
from crews or staff members where an unsafe occurrence has been witnessed or 
experienced (not an accident or an incident). These have increased from 381 in 2019/20, 
to 1,123 in in 2020/21.  Safety concerns are a useful tool in identifying potential incidents 
before they occur. In the first six months Ubico saw a huge rise in safety concerns 
reported. The main cause of this was due to more cars parked in roads, this caused a 
large number of access issues resulting from COVID-19 and people working from home. 

5.2 There are areas for improvement in the numbers of vehicle accidents which totalled 22 
for the year.  Although lower than the previous year, the number of overweight vehicles 
(89) requires improvement as this increased on the previous year. There is a target of 
zero for overweight vehicles.    

5.3 A lower number of Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR) reportable incidents were recorded in 2020/21 (2).  Each 
report is investigated and, where necessary, remedial actions taken. Monitoring officers 
require a completed investigation report and details of the findings for the Keep Safe, 
Stay Healthy Board.  

 

 

40



6.0 FLEET MANAGEMENT 

6.1 The fleet compliance audit score has been consistently increasing throughout the 
reporting period. This is a positive report to show that the operational team are regularly 
checking the management of the fleet with a score of 98.3% - the highest achieved by 
any UBICO contract.  

7.0 PROJECTS 

7.1 • Implement and review changes to grounds maintenance – in progress. 

• Implement changes to street services – ready to be rolled out, we are awaiting 
confirmation.  

• Implement a sweeper schedule – Groundwork has been completed; we are 
awaiting a sweeper specialist from Cotswold to assist. COVID-19 has delayed 
this. 

• Adding an extra food waste round – in progress, this has now been approved and 
planned. Ubico are just awaiting the vehicle to be delivered.  

• Explore potential for greater service integration with Tewkesbury to deliver 
operational efficiencies and improvements on collection rounds, trade waste and 
streets and grounds services – in progress, trade waste identified as a potential 
source of extra revenue. 

8.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

8.1 None 

9.0 CONSULTATION  

9.1 None 

10.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

10.1 Council Plan 

Managing Contractors Safely Policy  

11.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

11.1  COVID-19  

12.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

12.1 National driver shortage 

13.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

13.1 None 

13.0 IMPACT UPON (Value for Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
and Safety) 

13.1 None 

 

41



14.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

14.1 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Review of Ubico July 2020 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Community Services 
 01684 272259 peter.tonge@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Ubico Performance Report 
  
 

42

mailto:peter.tonge@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Ubico Annual Report 

April 2020 to March 2021 

10.06.2021 V2 1

Appendix 1

43



10.06.2021 V2 2

Executive  Summary 

• Overall missed collection have reduced across all waste streams compared 

to previous year

• Repeat missed collection reports have reduced compared to the previous 

year.

• Repeat missed assisted collection reports have reduced compared to the 

previous year.

• Collection accuracy has improved and appears to be steady around 99.93%

• Crew checks have been a success, completing 100% all year long.

• Driver Vehicle Standards Agency “green” rating retained for another year –

please refer to page 20 for further details

• Fleet processes and compliance has dramatically improved.

44



10.06.2021 V2 3

Deliver Quality:  Missed Collections

Overall the missed bin collections have dropped significantly across all services, this was a great achievement due to the

pandemic having caused a major impact across all services last year. We had a high level of agency staff due to the pandemic.

The reduction in missed collections has demonstrated that we are on the correct path with regards to training new staff on the

importance of bin collections.

332 361

245

419

265 297
225 199 190

372

207 235

448 390
392

417
456

1263

892

796

252 266
185

270

April May June July August September October November December January February March

All Waste Streams - Monthly reported missed collections 

2020/21 2019/20

37

141

58
48

76

195

128

104

RECYCLING FOOD GARDEN REFUSE

Monthly Average Number of 
Missed Collections 

2020/21 2019/20

45



10.06.2021 V2 4

Deliver Quality:  Missed Collections

Recycling missed collections has seen almost a 50% drop in 

missed collections from the previous year, the hard work and 

dedication from the supervisors and the waste collection crews 

has been excellent.

Refuse collection has seen a significant drop in missed bin

collections, again the hard work our crews and supervisors

have put in over the last 12 months through a Pandemic

really does show.

Food waste collections – The food waste service is the most 

difficult to work on, they service twice the amount of properties 

on a weekly basis. Although the service has seen a drop in 

missed bins we will continue to improve the right first time 

collection rate.

Garden waste collection – Garden waste has been a 

challenging service with more subscribers enrolling. The support 

of TBC in re-allocation of roads has been vital in the overall 

performance with missed bins dropping by almost 1000.

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Monthly reported missed collections 

Refuse Recycling Food Garden

571
446

1692

638

1244

915

2337

1531

Refuse Recycling Food Garden

Number of Missed Collections per 
Waste Stream 

2020/21 2019/20

46



10.06.2021 V2 5

Deliver Quality:  Repeat Missed Collections  

Repeat Missed Collections: The level of repeat missed

collections is below the agreed target of 10. The use of the

“Red List” system is successful here as it identifies and

highlights any repeat collection issues at the same property

/ location. These areas/addresses are visited by

supervisors or are checked using the vehicles tracking

system to confirm collection and resolve any issues on the

day to avoid repeat issues.

Repeat Missed Assisted Collections: As with repeat missed 

assisted collections, they are down from 54 in 2019/20 to 9 in 

2020/21.

5

2

9

6

3
2 1 2 0 0 1

6

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Repeat Missed Collections

Repeat Missed Collections Target 10 or less

47



10.06.2021 V2 6

Deliver Quality: Collections – Apr 20 – Mar 21

Total collections: 4,506,600

Total missed collections:3,347

Collection Accuracy %: 99.93%

Although the missed bins have dropped significantly, we are still slightly below our target of 99.95%. We

will continually aim to improve and reduce missed bins. With the improvements in the systems we use, this

will aid in reaching the target of 99.95%.

Target %: 99.95%48



10.06.2021 V2 7

Deliver Quality:  Bin Requests

The number of bin requests fluctuates across the months with garden waste bins affected most due to seasonality. Bin

deliveries are scheduled automatically by TBC and any bins not able to be delivered on the scheduled day due to large

volumes of bulky collections, are rescheduled automatically by the system. We are also seeing a steady rise in the number

of new properties which increases the number of bins being requested.

1255

975

2222

1564

Number of Bins Requested

Refuse Recycling Food Garden

49



10.06.2021 V2 8

Deliver Quality:  Tonnages

Due to COVID-19, across Ubico, we have seen an increase of weights across all services, garden waste with the biggest

percentage. This was due to more people working from home creating much more waste.

14993

8998

3454

7225

1300

253

13908

8838

3075

5168

1002
204

Refuse Recycling Food Garden Streets Sweepings Bulkies

Tewkesbury Yearly Tonnage by Waste Stream 

2020/21 2019/20

50



10.06.2021 V2 9

Deliver Quality: Household Waste

39%

58%

50% 52% 52% 54%
49% 47%

41% 43% 42%

50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

NI 192 (%) - Household waste reused, recycled and composted *)

NI 192 (%) - Monthly Target = 60%

39 37
41 40

35
39 37 38 39

42

34

40

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

NI 191 (kg) - Residual household waste per Head of Population

51



10.06.2021 V2 10

Deliver Quality:  Bulky Waste Collections

We have seen a rise in collections through June – October, again this was due to COVID-19 and more people being

at home. This is a service which has since left Ubico.

323

258

354
377 375

318 313

222

188

286

323

284

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Number of Bulky Waste Collections

52



10.06.2021 V2 11

Deliver Quality:  Number of New Properties 

As COVID-19 restrictions have been starting to ease, new properties began to rise. This was due to things starting to

become much more normal as expected. Tewkesbury, as a borough, continues to grow and thrive. We expect these

numbers to continually rise as the pandemic restrictions are lifted.

0 0

28

149

9

84

52

62

36

106

78

92

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

NUMBER OF NEW PROPERTIES RECORDED

53



10.06.2021 V2 12

Care for our Environment: Litter/Street and Fly-tipping Requests

Litter / Street Cleaning requests have

remained steady with a couple of

months exceptionally busy.

Fly tipping report numbers vary across

the year. We aim to collect these within

the 5 working days, but COVID-19 and

a couple of sudden spikes have made

this difficult. For large fly-tips, the

contractor we use was also not

available a lot of the time due to the

pandemic.

14 8

35 28 25
10 17 27

10
27 37 46

126
105

131 133
111

97
116

92 88
101

115

207

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Litter/Street Cleaning Fly-tipping

Number of Litter / Street Cleansing and Fly-tipping requests

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
92%

100% 100% 100% 100%

77%

56%

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

% of Fly-tipping Requests completed within 5 working days 

% of Requests completed within 5 working days Target - 100%

54



10.06.2021 V2 13

Care for our Environment: Other Requests

Last year proved to be very difficult, especially with unprecedented times.

88%
80%

86%

100%

69%

100%

80% 80%
75%

95%

0%

40%

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

% of Dead Animal removal requests completed within 2 working days

% of Requests completed within 2 working Days Target - 100%

55



10.06.2021 V2 14

Care for our Environment: Complaints Completed by Ubico

Ubico and TBC working together as a partnership has shown to be effective with complaints dropping significantly.

7

18

8

0

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Formal Complaints 

2020/21

56



11

15

12

15

8

2

4

7
6 6

1 2

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Number of Overweight Tickets

10.06.2021 V2 15

Be Safe: Overweight 

Over the last 12 months, our drivers have received re-training. As a result over-weights have decreased.

Target – 0 Overweight Tickets

57



10.06.2021 V2 16

Be Safe: Safety Concern Reporting

Safety concerns are a useful tool in identifying potential incidents before they occur. In the first 6 months we saw a huge

rise in safety concerns reported. The main cause of this was due to more cars parked in roads, this caused a large

number of access issues resulting from COVID-19 and people working from home. We encourage all of our staff to report

safety concerns on a daily basis.

119

87

222

165

114
129

66 60 66 63

44

8

Reported Safety Concerns

245

169

109

99

96

RTA

Collision with an object

Slips, trips or falls

Covid-19 related issues

Access issues

Reported Safety Concerns
Top 5 by Incident Categories

58



10.06.2021 V2 17

Be Safe: Crew Inspections 

The target for crew inspections is to inspect every member of staff who has worked over 10 days in that particular

month, this includes agency workers. We always aim to complete crew checks on all members of staff to ensure Risk

Assessments and Safe Systems of Work are being adhered too.

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Tewkesbury: % of Crew Inspections Carried Out each Month

% of Crew Inspected Target - 100%

59



10.06.2021 V2 18

Be Safe: Accidents 

Overall, personal accidents are low. There was a spike in March where there were 5 incidents reported. All trends identified

from accidents are linked into the monthly briefs which are delivered to all employees to reduce the likelihood of future

occurrences.

3
2

1
2

1

3

1 1 1

51

1

Personal Accidents and RIDDORs

Personal Accidents RIDDORs

1

2 2

3

2

1

2 2 2

3

2

1

Vehicle and Property Accidents

Vehicle Accidents Property Accidents

60



Absence – Tewkesbury Contract

10.06.2021 V2 19

1.09

0.75

0.34
0.45

0.62

0.20
0.27

0.36

0.56

1.01

1.20

0.71

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Average Number of Sick Days per Full Time Employee

We have seen a spike in

January - Febebruary

caused by long term

sickness.

Our absence policy has

proven to be effective in

controlling and managing

sickness and absences from

the workplace.

61



10.06.2021 V2 20

Deliver Quality: Fleet

• The Driver Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA) scores every operator on positive and negative ‘encounters’ over a rolling 3 year

period. Negative encounters include MOT failures and poor inspections. Positive encounters include MOT passes and

successful inspections. The rating is based on a traffic light system of Red, Amber & Green. Ubico has continued to retain its

green rating throughout 2020 and 2021.

• We were the first contract within UBICO to achieve a 98.3% fleet score. This was a score we actually achieved more than

once.

• The services not completed on time were caused by the vehicles being off the road

• All MOT’s passed first time throughout the year.

• Traffic Commissioner / DVSA Rating for 2020/21: Green

• Fleet Compliance Audit Score: 98.3% 

94%
100% 100%

95%
100% 100%

94%
100%

94%
100% 100% 100%

Fleet Management  
% of scheduled services completed on time

% of Scheduled Services completed on time Target = 100%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

MOT performance first time pass rate Target = 100%

Fleet Management

62



10.06.2021 V2 21

Tewkesbury Projects 

• Implement and review changes to grounds maintenance – in progress

• Implement changes to street services – ready to be rolled out, we are 

awaiting confirmation.

• Implement a sweeper schedule – Ground work has been completed, we 

are awaiting a Sweeper specialist from Cotswold to assist. COVID-19 

has delayed this.

• Adding an extra food waste round – in progress, this has now been 

approved and planned. We are just awaiting a vehicle to be delivered.

• Explore potential for greater service integration with Tewkesbury to deliver 

operational efficiencies and improvements on collection rounds, trade waste 

and streets and grounds services – in progress, trade waste identified as 

a potential source of extra revenue

63



10.06.2021 V2 22

Ubico Corporate Projects 

• 1% salary costs dedicated to increasing training, to support a range of improvements, particularly in 

operational areas and develop leadership skills in inspiring everyone to live our values - completed

• Consider a mechanism for staff surveys, performance review and reward scheme - completed

• Review driver pay to incorporate some of the long-term supplements into base salary - in progress 

• Greater focus on wellbeing and mental health – completed but remains ongoing

• Explore greater integration of staffing structures in operational depots – on hold due to Covid-19

• Retain ISO 45001 and 14001 certification to demonstrate we are responsible and future focused and 

committed to delivering high standards in H&S and also improving the environment - completed

• Work with commissioner to jointly operate an in-cab technology to drive efficiencies – in progress (

successfully rolled out at Cotswold, West Ox to follow in autumn 2021)

• Review fleet profiles to respond to shareholder capital strategies - completed

• Embed new working patterns in workshops to improve service offering - completed

64



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Wednesday 9 June 2021 

1. Introduction

This was the first committee meeting that had been held since the County Council 
elections in May 2021.  As the result of these elections several new County 
Councillors became members of the committee.  The meeting was chaired by a new 
Chair person.  In addition, a new Vice Chair was elected at the meeting. 

To provide an introduction to new committee members, several organisations 
provided presentations regarding their role and responsibilities in relation to 
Gloucestershire’s economic growth.  They also described their involvement in 
Gloucestershire’s economic recovery following the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Representatives from the following organisations delivered presentations: 

 GFirst LEP - Chief Executive

 Gloucestershire County Council - Executive Director of Economy, 
Environment and Infrastructure

 Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) -

Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group 

NOTE: Where a link does not automatically work, please copy the link and paste it 
into your browser. 

2. GFirst LEP Presentation
2.1 Overview 

GFirst LEP was approved by the Government in 2011. The LEP works to promote 
economic growth in the county by creating jobs and providing opportunities for 
businesses in the region.  

They do this by: 

 Developing roads and transport infrastructure throughout the region.

 Launching organisations like “The Growth Hub” that offer valuable business
advice.

 Building training and education facilities to promote Gloucestershire in the
future.

65

Agenda Item 9



 

2.2 Growth Deal 

In 2015 GFirst LEP secured the Gloucestershire Growth Deal which has seen an 
approximate £500m investment in Gloucestershire.  Further details on the growth 
deal programme can be found at: 

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/gloucestershire-growth-deal/ 

2.3Local Industrial Strategy 

In early 2020 the Gloucestershire Local Industrial Strategy was finalised by GFirst 
LEP + partners and presented to Government.  The Local Industrial Strategy can be 
found at: 

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-
strategy_2019-updated.pdf 

2.4 Covid-19 Response and recovery Plan 

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the economy of 
Gloucestershire.  The response to the pandemic and the recovery plan can be found 
at: 

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gfirst-lep-covid-economic-restart-
interventions-finalversion---july-2020.pdf 

3. Gloucestershire County Council Presentation

This presentation provided an overview of: 

 The current economic growth agenda for Gloucestershire, highlighting
progress against the Gloucestershire County Council Covid-19 recovery plan

Please follow this link: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71717/Colin%20rep
ort.pdf 

 The Gloucestershire economic growth dashboard.
Please follow this link: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s72108/Economic%2
0Dashboard%20May%202021.pdf 

66

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/gloucestershire-growth-deal/
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-strategy_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-strategy_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gfirst-lep-covid-economic-restart-interventions-finalversion---july-2020.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gfirst-lep-covid-economic-restart-interventions-finalversion---july-2020.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71717/Colin%20report.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71717/Colin%20report.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s72108/Economic%20Dashboard%20May%202021.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s72108/Economic%20Dashboard%20May%202021.pdf


4. Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee Presentation

The Chief Executive of Tewkesbury Borough Council said that all the districts 
(including the County) work best when they work together as an effective 
partnership. 

He provided some background on the origin of the joint committee as well as this 
scrutiny committee.  He said that in 2015 the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee was set up to be a partnership capable of making binding decisions 
for Gloucestershire concerning the local economy and its growth.  The 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee was established at the same 
time to provide scrutiny arrangements for the joint committee. 

The joint committee has made a lot of decisions in the past that have been very 
helpful around business rates and the coordination of bids for economic 
development funding around Gloucestershire. 

The joint committee and this scrutiny committee are supported by a body called the 
Senior Officer Group.  This is made up of representatives from GFirst LEP, 
Gloucestershire County Council and all the districts at senior level.  Group members 
tend to be people who are involved in economic growth and/or planning.  The work 
of the Group is to support the efforts of the joint and scrutiny committees.  

As far as this scrutiny committee is concerned, he said that two very important 
documents have already been mentioned:  

 The Local Industrial Strategy

 The Local Transport Plan

However, the four local plans also need to be considered.  These are for: 

 Cotswold

 Stroud

 Forest of Dean

 And collectively, Tewkesbury, Cheltenham and Gloucester who have a joint
core strategy (JCS)

From 2011 to 2031, 61,500 homes are planned to be delivered across the county.  
This is in addition to the plan to deliver 340 hectares of employment land - which 
equates to over 52,000 jobs. 

The local planning authorities are also working on plans to 2041.  These look like 
bringing forward a further 30,000 new homes and about 140 hectares of 
employment land – equating to another 18,000 jobs. 

An aim is to try to get an agreed way forward for development in Gloucestershire 
beyond 2050.  This is so that the location of planned housing can be integrated with 
both employment growth and the emerging transport system. 

COVID-19 led to district councils across Gloucestershire paying out about £200 
million to approximately 40,000 businesses- to help keep them afloat.  This involved 
a tremendous amount of extra work for local authorities.  67



 

5. Executive Director’s Report

The Executive Director of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure on Economic 
Growth, provided an update report on issues in the County (including Q3 & Q4 
performance data). 

The link to this report follows. 

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71622/Directors%20Report%20E 
EI%20Scrutiny%20-%20May%202021_.pdf 

68

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71622/Directors%20Report%20EEI%20Scrutiny%20-%20May%202021_.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s71622/Directors%20Report%20EEI%20Scrutiny%20-%20May%202021_.pdf


TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 13 July 2021 

Subject: Financial Outturn Report 2020/21 

Report of: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Corporate Lead: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Finance and Asset Management 

Number of Appendices: Four 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The report highlights the Council’s financial performance for the previous year, setting out the 
General Fund and capital outturn positions. To support this, a detailed statement on both 
positive and negative variances against budget is included. 

The formation of the Council’s reserves as at year end is also included within the report, as is 
the performance of the Treasury Management function as required by the Council’s Treasury 
Management Policy. 

The report outlines a significant revenue surplus of over £13m and details the reasons for this 
position. It should be noted that, whilst this is very satisfying outturn position and provides a 
welcome boost to reserves, it does not resolve any of the difficulties with the ongoing position 
of the Council’s budget. There still remains a lack of clarity around government funding plans 
and the financial challenge of balancing an ongoing budget, in light of further potential 
reductions, remains in place and will be demanding.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the General Fund outturn for 2020/21, the reserves position as at 31 
March 2021, the financing of the capital programme and the annual treasury 
management report and performance. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

In line with the requirement to provide Members with regular information on the Council’s 
finances and financial performance, a report on progress against budget is produced on a 
quarterly basis. This report on the outturn position for the Council offers more detail on the final 
financial position and compliments the existing reporting framework.  

Given the extended timetable for the closure of accounts as a result of additional complexities 
added to the process, it was not possible to present the financial information with the 
performance report for quarter four. This standalone report covers the requirement for financial 
information to be presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

As detailed within the report. 

69

Agenda Item 10



Legal Implications: 

Nothing specific arising from the report recommendations. 

Risk Management Implications: 

A number of reserves have been set aside to deal directly with specific service risk or general 
financial risk to the Council.  

Performance Management Follow-up: 

The performance of services against their set budget is monitored on an ongoing basis. In 
addition, performance is reported to Members on a quarterly basis. 

Environmental Implications:  

The creation of a new reserve to support the carbon reduction programme is contained within 
the reserves proposal. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 This report sets out the final outturn position for the 2020/21 financial year. The main 
purpose of this report is to provide Members with an overview of the performance against 
the General Fund revenue budget for 2020/21 and explain significant variances. 

1.2 The report also addresses the movement on reserves. In addition to the revenue budget 
outturn, this report also seeks to confirm the full year progress against the capital 
programme and the sources of finance used in delivering that programme, and also to report 
the performance in 2020/21 of the treasury management function in line with the 
requirements of the code of practice. 

1.3 All of the information within this report will be contained within the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts which will be approved by the Audit and Governance Committee later in 2021 
following the audit conducted by Grant Thornton. 

2.0 GENERAL FUND REVENUE OUTTURN 2020/21 

2.1 In March 2021, the quarter three outturn position was reported to Executive Committee. The 
report confirmed an estimated year end surplus of £818,822. 

2.2 The final General Fund revenue outturn position for the full year can now be reported as a 
£13,340,273 surplus. This is heavily inflated by a number of factors including: 

• Business rates in year and past performance as well as government grant for reliefs.  

• COVID-19 general and specific grants.  

• Other, non COVID-19, related grants, including the drawn down of funding to cover 
Ashchurch Bridge expenditure. 

• COVID-19 related income loss compensation. 

• In-year service savings.  

• Budgeted transfer to reserves of £1.26m. 

 

 

70



2.3 The table below summarises the service performance which has generated the reported 
surplus. In addition, the table highlights the non-service related activity and other aspects of 
the overall budget to provide a whole view of the Council’s general fund. The table 
concludes with the budgeted transfer to reserves of £1.263m and the actual transfer totalling 
£14.603m. The budget was set without the one-off windfall from Business Rates and before 
the COVID-19 pandemic began, hence the major variations reported for 2020/21. 

Table 1 – General Fund outturn summary 

 Full Year 

Budget 

 Outturn 

Position  
  Savings/Deficit 

£ £ £

Employees 10,543,453.00  9,928,123.65     615,329.35        

Premises 614,421.00        598,593.29        15,827.71          

Transport 86,630.00          35,069.39          51,560.61          

Supplies & Services 1,991,284.00     1,997,834.93     6,550.93-             

Payments to Third Parties 5,810,076.00     5,982,995.00     172,919.00-        

Transfer Payments - Benefits Service 69,796.00-          98,046.60-          28,250.60          

COIVD-19 Costs -                      1,069,443.00     1,069,443.00-     

Projects Funded Externally 61,591.00          910,634.38-        972,225.38        

Income 7,321,348.00-     8,611,995.59-     1,290,647.59     

Services Total 11,716,311.00  9,991,382.69    1,724,928.31    

Treasury activity 11,700.00          251.00-                11,951.00          

Commercial activity 2,713,904.00-     2,870,978.00-     157,074.00        

New Homes Bonus 3,762,756.00-     3,762,756.00-     -                      

Business Rates Income Budget 2,585,070.00-     3,290,724.00-     705,654.00        

Business Rates COVID-19 Reliefs -                      5,190,768.00-     5,190,768.00     

Business Rates 2019/20 Surplus -                      3,524,341.00-     3,524,341.00     

Council Tax 82,200.00-          369,244.00-        287,044.00        

COVID-19 Grants -                      2,177,703.00-     2,177,703.00     

Other adjustments 3,847,266.00-     3,408,077.00-     439,189.00-        

Reserves 1,263,185.00    14,603,457.96  13,340,272.96-   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



2.4 The outturn position for direct service expenditure and income shows a surplus of 
£1,724,928 and is mainly attributable to the major items outlined below: 

• The employees’ full year budget is underspent largely as a result of staff turnover 
and vacancies in a number of service groupings. 

• Transport is underspent due to staff working from home and being unable to attend 
meetings or training in person. 

• Payments to third parties is showing a significant overspend because several 
provisions were raised at year end for planning appeals lodged in the financial year. 
It is anticipated that these appeals will need specialist legal representation.  

• It should also be noted that within payments to third parties, the outturn position for 
the Ubico contract - budgeted at £4.058m - reported a surplus of £160,455. 

• Costs that were directly attributable to COVID-19 total £1,069,443. This includes:  

o A management fee of £442,000 paid to Places for People. This was to help 
with the unavoidable costs of closing during the pandemic.  

o Additional staff costs across various departments. Some full-time staff were 
redeployed fully to the COVID-19 response, for example, administering grant 
schemes. Therefore, agency staff were contracted to backfill the day jobs. 
More staff were also needed to cope with demand, such as additional 
cleaners and IT support.  

o £115,000 of additional Ubico costs due to additional staff, vehicles, PPE and 
cleaning products in order to be COVID-19 secure. 

• Projects funded externally contains the costs and income of the Joint Core Strategy 
(JCS), Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Garden Town. The balances on 
these individual funds are moved to reserves at year end. The surplus seen is 
additional government funding received, particularly relating to the Garden Town. 

• Council income is showing additional income levels of £1.29m over the budgeted 
position. The majority of fees and charges budgets were under target due to the 
pandemic, with the exception of planning fees which had a surplus of £115,000. The 
large variance is therefore as a result of substantial external grant income being 
received during the year. The Council has received grants for a range of activities 
including homelessness prevention, carbon reduction and supporting the leisure 
centre. The Council also received a further £2.18m of grant funding for COVID-19 to 
relieve our spending pressures and compensate our losses. These have been 
included in the corporate codes and are detailed later in the report. 

2.5 A full explanation of all variances exceeding £40,000 at a group subjective level is contained 
at Appendix A. The appendix also contains an explanation of the variance on the corporate 
codes with a more detailed explanation within Paragraphs 2.6 to 2.11. 

2.6 The treasury outturn for 2020/21 is a small gain of £12,000. More detail on the performance 
of the treasury function is shown in Paragraph 5 of the report and Appendix D.   

2.7 With regards to commercial activity, the Council acquired two new commercial investment 
properties in the year at a cost of £19.7m which has resulted in a surplus of gross rental 
generation against budget of £157,074. This completed the acquisition phase for the Council 
with the portfolio investment totalling £59.3m and producing a gross rental income of £3.4m; 
a yield of 5.78%.  

 

 

72



2.8 The overall position on the retained business rates scheme shows a surplus of £9.42m for 
the full year. This surplus is constructed from several elements as follows: 

• £5.19m of business rates relief funding was given to us by government in advance of 
the 100% relief given to businesses impacted by the pandemic. This is grant funding 
to cover the loss of income from businesses not being required to pay business 
rates. The loss of income manifests itself into a collection fund deficit at year end 
which is not realised until the following financial year. Therefore, we must hold the 
£5.19m in a reserve to fund the future deficit that will form part of outturn next year. 

• Similarly, the 2019/20 surplus of £3.5m on the business rates collection fund has 
been realised in the 2020/21 outturn. This derived from the release of provisions 
being held against the potential successful appeals by a number of businesses. This 
position was reported in the outturn report for 2019/20 and was earmarked to 
replenish the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) reserve after it was used to 
pay the levy due on the collection fund surplus. 

• The remaining surplus of £705k is a genuine gain on budget. This includes additional 
income from growth of new businesses within the borough and the Gloucestershire 
Business Rates Pool reported an estimated gain of £450,000. 

2.9 The Council Tax surplus reported in the table above comprises two government grants. 
Firstly, the Council was awarded £532,000 in Council Tax Hardship. This is a central 
government scheme administered by local authorities where those residents who were most 
impacted by the pandemic could have additional relief on their Council Tax of £150. At year 
end the remaining balance was £123,000. The other grant received was specifically to 
compensate the Council for 75% of its losses in Council Tax as a result of the COVID-19 
impact. The Council received £127,000 which will be transferred to reserves in order offset 
any future deficits linked to COVID-19. In addition to these grants, Tewkesbury Borough’s 
share of the Council Tax Collection Fund surplus has been released. 

2.10 As mentioned earlier, the Council received a general grant from central government to 
relieve expenditure pressures relating to COVID-19. This was given in four tranches 
throughout the year totalling £1.25m. These were not ringfenced for specific services, which 
is why they have been included in the corporate codes. The balance of the £2.178m 
received relates, in the main, to new burdens funding for administering the numerous grant 
schemes introduced by central government throughout the various stages of the pandemic. 
In addition, the Council claimed £450,000 of compensation from the government for losses 
incurred in its sales, fees and charges income streams as a result of the pandemic.  

2.11 The final row in the table picks up all of the remaining items within the base budget to 
reconcile back to the budgeted transfer to reserves. This row mainly contains the precepts 
on the taxpayer for both the Borough Council and Parish Councils but also contains other 
items such as the Minimum Revenue Provision. 

2.12 Overall, the Council is able to transfer to reserves a gross total of £14.6m.  

2.13 The Council has gained significantly in 2020/21 despite the impact of coronavirus on its 
expenditure patterns as compensation and grant funding from the government and grant 
funding from other sources have met the majority of costs incurred. In addition, known 
impacts from the business rates retention scheme and the draw down of funding from the 
Ashchurch Bridge project have significantly boosted the Council’s reserves.  

 

 

 

73



2.14 This places the Council in a good position, with significant one-offs available to meet service 
requirements and mitigate risk in a number of areas; however, it must be stressed that this 
good financial outturn does not mean that our ongoing budget pressures have eased. There 
remains much uncertainty around government plans for funding and our MTFS still shows a 
substantial ongoing deficit over the next five years. The one-offs now available will help the 
Council to meet the financial challenge it will face but they do not resolve that challenge. 

3.0 COUNCIL RESERVES 

3.1 A breakdown of the reserves of the Council as at 31 March 2021 is shown at Appendix B. 
Also included is a breakdown of the previous year’s reserves, under the same strategic 
headings, to inform Members about the movement on those reserves in the last two years. 

3.2 Total revenue reserves of the Council stand at £31.78m as at the end of March 2021 and 
include earmarked reserves, planning obligations and the general fund working balance. The 
increase in overall revenue reserves totals £14.6m and is as a result of a number of factors: 

• In-year surplus within the general fund of £3.92m, including external grant funding as 
highlighted in Paragraph 2 but excluding business rates.  

• The movement back to reserves of £1.26m added to balance the 2020/21 budget, 
but unnecessary considering the many favourable variances on budget.  

• The business rates surplus of £9.42m, in part for funding the 2021/22 Business 
Rates deficit totalling £5.2m – mentioned in Paragraph 2.8. 

3.3 Members will recall from the previous outturn, the accounting treatment required for the 
surplus on the business rates collection fund where it was necessary to pay a levy to 
government before receiving the benefit of the surplus in the following year. As a result, the 
MTFS reserve of £1m and circa £260,000 of the vehicle replacement reserve were 
withdrawn to meet the levy cost in 2019/20. The surplus of £3.52m is now available to the 
Council and has been used to replenish those reserves and also fund the £500,000 in-year 
covid recovery reserve. 

3.4 The remaining balance of the collection fund surplus has been set aside in the MTFS 
reserve which, together with an allocation of other surpluses, results in a reserve balance of 
£2.7m. This is a significant sum compared to previous years and leaves the Council well 
placed to meet the future financial challenges it will face as further government funding 
reforms loom. 

3.5 Also contained within the reserves list are the balances of funding attracted for specific 
COVID-19 actions and recovery activities. Around £1.75m is held for this purpose and 
covers a range of activities including outbreak management, community grants and leisure 
support as well as our own service recovery.  

3.6 The attraction of external grants was not limited solely to COVID-19 related activities and the 
reserves reflect further allocations for the Garden Town, housing, carbon reduction and a 
review of the Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74



3.7 The surpluses generated within the general fund have allowed the Corporate Leadership 
Team to consider the best use of those one-off funds to support the Council. In making a 
recommendation for the allocation of surpluses, the Corporate Leadership Team has 
considered further COVID-19 recovery actions that may be necessary, immediate risks 
facing the Council, supporting service transformation and the funding of new priority areas. 
The surplus allocated by the Corporate Leadership Team is shown below and contained 
within the reserve appendix. 

COVID-19 recovery reserve £200,000 

Pay award reserve £200,000 

Vehicle replacement reserve £200,000 

Digital team £200,000 

Climate change reserve £100,000 

Service review reserve £130,000 

IT replacement fund £100,000 

Immediate support to Development Management £120,000 

Garden Town communications officer £35,000 
 

3.8 Of the net increase in reserves of £14.6m, £645,913 can be attributed to an increase in the 
Planning Obligations Reserve which is funded by developer contributions. Large sums have 
been received for commitments such as affordable housing, community centres and sports 
facilities.  

3.9 Where significant movements in other reserves have occurred during the year, a note in 
Appendix B has been included to explain the reason for the movement.  

4.0 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

4.1 The Council has committed to a substantial capital programme in the last few years and this 
is highlighted in the level of planned capital expenditure for 2020/21, totalling £26m. The 
bulk of the planned expenditure was the expected purchase of a further two investment 
properties (£21.6m), infrastructure projects such as Ashchurch Bridge (£2.9m), replacement 
vehicles and equipment (£0.75m) and disabled facilities grants (£0.5m).  

4.2 The actual delivery of the capital programme saw the acquisition of two new investment 
properties in 2020, totalling £19.7m. This was £1.9m less than the budgeted amount of 
£21.6m.  

4.3 In addition, within Council Land and Buildings, a total of £792,334 was spent on the new 
infrastructure project, Ashchurch Bridge, all of which is funded by Homes England. Again, 
this was significantly less than the original budget expectations. This means that despite 
spending £20.5m on land and buildings, the capital programme reports an underspend of 
£4m against this heading. 

4.4 A total of £233,276 was spent during the year on vehicles and equipment. This included the 
purchase of a couple of new mowers for our grounds maintenance operation, the purchase 
of waste and recycling bins and the purchase of IT hardware. This is a significant 
underspend against budgeted expectations (70.8%) as a result of the expected replacement 
of the grounds maintenance fleet being delayed until the new financial year. 

75



4.5 An underspend of 100% is reported against the remaining capital balances from the 
community grants programme as no further drawn downs on existing balances took place. 
The balance of £57,700 from Wormington Village Hall was formally reallocated during the 
year and new community bids for the pot of money are currently being assessed. 

4.6 A small underspend against forecast levels was delivered from the Council’s disabled 
facilities grants programme. All expenditure is covered by capital grant funding from the 
government which is administered by the County Council. Tewkesbury’s allocation for the 
year was £500,000 and so the total expenditure incurred of £424,928 was met from this. 

4.7 As well as the grant income received for disabled facilities grants, capital receipts were 
received for Right-to-Buy sales on the housing stock previously owned by Tewkesbury 
Borough Council and for the sale of the former garage site in Winchcombe. The capital grant 
monies drawn down for Ashchurch Bridge is also shown within the capital statement before 
its transfer to revenue.  

4.8 The summarised capital programme is shown in Appendix C together with the sources of 
finance used. In summary, the Council expended £21.2m on capital projects in 2020/21 
utilising £233,276 of capital reserves, £1,219,526 of capital grants and £19,740,309 of 
borrowing. Following the allocation of capital receipts, the balance on capital reserves, both 
receipts and grants, has increased to £1.195m as at 31 March 2021. 

5.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

5.1 Treasury management in local government is governed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management in the Public Services. This Council has adopted the code and 
complies with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by Members of an Annual Review 
Report after the financial year end. 

5.2 The detailed treasury report is attached at Appendix D. The report details the economic 
environment, local performance and a number of prudential indicators. 

5.3 The prudential indicators have been monitored regularly and there were no deviations from 
these indicators arising during the year. The in-year performance of treasury investments 
resulted in an average return of 2.46% and total income of £552,712. In addition, the Council 
had an in-year gain from the capital growth of its pooled funds totalling £574,000, recovering 
much of the loss experienced at the outset of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

5.4 Given the lack of available investment opportunities, the Council temporarily invested in 
short-dated, liquid instruments such as call accounts and money market funds. Total short-
term investments at 31 March 2020 was £33.2m, reducing to £10m at the end of this 
financial year. The average income return across all investments has increased by 1.02% to 
2.46%. Whilst capital values of these investments have deteriorated as a result of the impact 
of COVID-19, the Council holds these investments for the long term and expects capital 
levels to return to normal levels in the medium term. 

5.5 The Council began the financial year holding £44.84m of loans, in order to part-fund the 
investment in commercial property and ensure liquidity during the early months of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The Council has adopted a balanced borrowing strategy between the 
financial benefit of short-term borrowing and the cost certainty over the long term. This has 
resulted in the total borrowing cost being kept to a minimum with actual cost totalling 
£552,461 and representing an average cost of 1.54%. At 31 March 2021 the authority held 
£39.4m of loans, a decrease of £5.44m since 31 March 2020. 

 

 

76



6.0 CONSULTATION  

6.1 Budget holders have been consulted about the budget outturn for their service areas. The 
feedback has been incorporated in the report to explain differences between budgets and 
actual income and expenditure. 

7.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

7.1 Treasury Management Strategy approved at Council on 8 January 2020  

Medium Term Financial Strategy approved at Council on 8 January 2020. 

8.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

8.1  None 

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

9.1 As detailed within the report and appendices. 

10.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

10.1 None 

11.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health And 
Safety) 

11.1 None 

12.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

12.1 Approval of Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 – Council 8th January 2020 

Approval of Budget 2020/21 – Council 5th February 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Treasury Management Strategy 
 Budget 2020/21 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Finance and Asset Management 
 01684 272005 simon.dix@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
  
Appendices:  Appendix A – Revenue outturn by Group  
 Appendix B – Earmarked reserves and carry forwards 
 Appendix C – Capital Outturn 2020/21 
 Appendix D – Annual Treasury Management report 
  
  
  

77

mailto:simon.dix@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix A

General Fund Outturn by Group 2020/2021

Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Notes

Chief Executive

Employees £260,900 £223,829 £37,071

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £0 £0 £0

Supplies & Services £8,160 £176 £7,984

Payments to Third Parties £0 £0 £0

Income £0 £0 £0

TOTAL £269,060 £224,005 £45,055

Community Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £1,329,424 £1,339,069 -£9,645

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £900 £89 £811

Supplies & Services £151,319 £175,702 -£24,383

Payments to Third Parties £5,072,113 £5,095,662 -£23,549

COVID-19 Costs £0 £250,651 -£250,651 1

Income -£2,241,962 -£2,933,392 £691,430 2

TOTAL £4,311,794 £3,927,781 £384,013

Corporate Services Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £2,068,927 £1,908,622 £160,305 3

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £0 £0 £0

Supplies & Services £557,089 £513,877 £43,212 4

Payments to Third Parties £83,800 £55,380 £28,420

Transfer Payments - Benefits Service -£69,796 -£98,047 £28,251

COVID-19 Costs £0 £285,909 -£285,909 5

Income -£450,406 -£465,074 £14,668

TOTAL £2,189,614 £2,200,667 -£11,053

Democratic Services Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £273,305 £237,592 £35,713

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £11,500 £92 £11,408

Supplies & Services £456,419 £458,316 -£1,897

Payments to Third Parties £37,600 £14,641 £22,959

COVID-19 Costs £0 £2,017 -£2,017

Income -£2,000 -£52,637 £50,637 6

TOTAL £776,824 £660,021 £116,803

1) £115k of additional Ubico costs due to additional staff, vehicles, PPE and cleaning products in order to be 

COVID secure. £100k of agency costs for the Environmental Health department to manage the increased 

workload purely due to COVID. £16k of emergency accommodation costs for COVID homeless placements and 

£10k of costs to assist with the recovery plan. 

2) Additional income received that was not within budget including £250k grant for COVID compliance and 

£170k for Homelessness. The remaining additional income was across various services where income 

generated was greater than budget.

3) The majority of the savings relates to vacant posts within Revenues & Benefits. The overtime and backfill for 

this team is currently coded against COVID. There are also savings within the Business Transformation Team 

as the team did not become operational until midway through the financial year and also from the apprenticeship 

scheme which was suspended for the financial year. 

5) The majority of the expenditure relates to salary and agency costs within the Revenues & Benefits team plus 

£37k ICT costs.

4) The bulk of the savings was due to emergency equipment coming from the COVID budget for laptops and 

other essential equipment rather than the core ICT budget. 

78



Appendix A

Deputy Chief Executive Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £124,939 £96,254 £28,685

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £200 £0 £200

Supplies & Services £2,400 £124 £2,276

Payments to Third Parties £20,000 £0 £20,000

Income £0 £0 £0

TOTAL £147,539 £96,378 £51,161

Development Services Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £1,949,357 £1,857,327 £92,030 7

Premises £45,356 £43,254 £2,102

Transport £0 £826 -£826

Supplies & Services £219,175 £197,470 £21,705

Payments to Third Parties £216,045 £405,989 -£189,944 8

COVID-19 Costs £0 £53,115 -£53,115 9

Projects Funded Externally £61,591 -£910,634 £972,225 10

Income -£1,443,931 -£1,718,037 £274,106 11

TOTAL £1,047,593 -£70,690 £1,118,283

Finance and Asset Management Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £2,584,888 £2,568,750 £16,138

Premises £569,065 £555,340 £13,725

Transport £55,870 £27,662 £28,208

Supplies & Services £501,036 £572,382 -£71,346 12

Payments to Third Parties £363,558 £377,362 -£13,804

Precept £6,500 £6,876 -£376

COVID-19 Costs £477,840 -£477,840 13

Income -£1,425,401 -£1,862,331 £436,930 14

TOTAL £2,655,516 £2,723,881 -£68,365

One Legal Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

12) The overspend is all offset against the COVID and flood grants received in the year (£100k). There is a 

£29k saving on supplies and services

13) The overspend is made up of a £442k management fee paid for the Leisure Centre and additional staff 

costs for cleaning of £30k. 

6) Government grants were received in year for Elections that took place during the 2019/20 financial year. 

7) There were a couple of vacant posts within Development Control. Recruitment was attempted on these posts 

but this was unsuccessful. Agency staff were appointed as additional resources but an overall saving was still 

made. 
8) A number of provisions were raised, at year end, for planning appeals lodged in the financial year. It is 

anticipated that these appeals will need specialist legal representation. 

14) A Government grant was received of £171k for the Leisure Centre, to offset some of the £442k of the 

management fee paid in 2020/21. Only £75k of this grant was apportioned to 2020/21, the remaining £96k is 

being held in reserve for 2021/22. Another Government grant of £304k was received for Climate Change . 

Normal income streams had a £38k overall loss. 

9) Local Community Groups were given grants of up to £1,000 in order to help them during the pandemic. This 

was funded jointly by Gloucestershire County Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

10) The total represents the balance remaining across the Garden Communities project and the Joint Core 

Strategy after taking into account all income and expenditure in 2020/21. This will be added to the relevant 

earmarked reserves.

11) Planning income had a surplus of £115k at year end. A large application resulted in a receipt of £138,416.67 

in the last few days of March. 

In addition, a Community Development grant was received in year from NHS Gloucestershire for district 

strategies to achieve Integrated Locality Partnership (ILP) objectives. 

79



Appendix A

Employees £1,951,713 £1,696,682 £255,031

Premises £0 £0 £0

Transport £18,160 £6,400 £11,760

Supplies & Services £95,686 £79,788 £15,898

Payments to Third Parties £10,460 £27,084 -£16,624

Income -£1,757,648 -£1,580,525 -£177,123 15

TOTAL £318,371 £229,429 £88,942

Service Summary  Budget Actual  Savings / 

(Deficit)

Employees £10,543,453 £9,928,124 £615,329

Premises £614,421 £598,593 £15,828

Transport £86,630 £35,069 £51,561

Supplies & Services £1,991,284 £1,997,835 -£6,551

Payments to Third Parties £5,810,076 £5,982,995 -£172,919

Transfer Payments - Benefits Service -£69,796 -£98,047 £28,251

COIVD-19 Costs £0 £1,069,443 -£1,069,443

Projects Funded Externally £61,591 -£910,634 £972,225

Income -£7,321,348 -£8,611,996 £1,290,648

£11,716,311 £9,991,383 £1,724,928

Corporate Codes

Treasury activity £11,700 -£251 £11,951

Commercial activity -£2,713,904 -£2,870,978 £157,074 16

New Homes Bonus -£3,762,756 -£3,762,756 £0

Business Rates Income Budget -£2,585,070 -£3,290,724 £705,654 17

Business Rates COVID-19 Reliefs £0 -£5,190,768 £5,190,768 17

Business Rates 2019/20 Surplus £0 -£3,524,341 £3,524,341 17

Council Tax -£82,200 -£369,244 £287,044 18

Reserves £1,263,185 £0 £1,263,185 19

COVID-19 Grants £0 -£2,177,703 £2,177,703 20

Other adjustments -£3,847,266 -£3,408,077 -£439,189

-£11,716,311 -£24,594,842 £12,878,531

Net total £0 -£14,603,459 £14,603,459

19) The 2020/21 budget was set with the support of £1.26m of reserves. Income and expenditure has differed 

from budget, as a result of COVID-19. 

20) Government grants were allocated in year to support local authorities with coronavirus related spending 

pressures. 

17) The total surplus on Business rates in £9m. However only £705k is an actual gain on budget. There is a  

£3.5m one off surplus gain from 2019/20 being realised. Business Rates surplus' and deficit's are always 

resailed the following year in which they occur. We also had income of £5m from the central Government in 

advance of the expanded retail and nursery relief given to support businesses during COVID. This will need to 

be carried in reserve in order to pay for the 2020/21 deficit on Business Rates, that will be realised in 2021/22

18) £123k of the gains on Council Tax is the remaining Council Tax Hardship fund that had not been spent in 

year. This scheme allowed us to give additional relief off Council Tax for those most impacted by the pandemic. 

The reminder is being held in relief for further support next financial year. There is also a £127k in compensation 

on losses, granted by Central Government. 

16) A target of £326k, for new commercial income, was set in the 2020/21 budget. Two new properties were 

purchased during the year resulting in excess gross rental income.

15) Included in the income figures is a claim for loss of fees and charges due to COVID-19 of £69k as the 

pandemic prevented the service from achieving their budget for third party work.  

All fees and charges income was under budget due to the pandemic however this was mitigated (in part) by staff 

vacancies, hence the variances on both lines.

Stroud DC joined One Legal in October 2020 and paid a fixed amount for One Legal to provide their service for 

the 6 months to 31 March 2021 and this was kept separate from the original 3 way partnership between 

ourselves, Cheltenham BC and Gloucester City Council.

80



Appendix B

Council Revenue Reserves for 21/22

Balance Net Movement Balance Net Movement Balance Note

Reserve 31st March 2019 2019/20 31st March 2020 2020/21 31st March 2021

Asset Management Reserve 1,003,731.21 144,932.44 1,148,663.65 173,707.50 1,322,371.15 Planned contribution to commercial properties reserve

Borough Growth Reserve 930,609.81 339,556.52 1,270,166.33 -641,875.73 628,290.60 The Garden Town monies have now been moved to a new reserve

Borough Regeneration Reserve 201,537.30 -112,478.50 89,058.80 -7,400.00 81,658.80

Business Rates Reserve 500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00

Business Support Reserve 167,339.10 -42,021.65 125,317.45 879,010.40 1,004,327.85 Internal and external funding added to support business with the impact of  COVID-19

Business Transformation Reserve 659,336.84 -41,317.87 618,018.97 381,092.46 999,111.43 An increase in the reserve to support digitalisation and service reviews. 

Carbon Reduction Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 404,200.00 404,200.00 Internal and external funding to support carbon reduction objectives

Community Support Reserve 80,056.59 19,260.00 99,316.59 784,258.31 883,574.90 Internal and external funding added to support the community with the impact of COVID-19

Council Tax Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 251,390.65 251,390.65 Hardship balance plus compensation for tax losses

Development Management Reserve 254,686.55 -74,536.55 180,150.00 305,000.00 485,150.00 Increased funding to support immediate service pressure and appeals

Development Policy Reserve 565,436.42 -300,501.31 264,935.11 645,932.14 910,867.25 An Increase in the JCS fund held on behalf of the partnership and an additonal commitment toward JCS from TBC 

Elections Reserve 85,348.16 -44,500.00 40,848.16 150,000.00 190,848.16 Reserve set aside to fund the 2023 Borough Elections

Flood Support and Protection Reserve 10,196.22 -550.00 9,646.22 0.00 9,646.22

Garden Town Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,202,257.79 1,202,257.79 A specific Garden Town reserve has been created 

Health & Leisure Development Reserve 1,989.03 -100.00 1,889.03 98,653.91 100,542.94 External grant funding to support the re-opening of the leisure centre

Housing & Homeless Reserve 522,841.66 85,752.20 608,593.86 -65,794.91 542,798.95

Information Technology Reserve 109,500.00 695.49 110,195.49 121,207.92 231,403.41 Additional monies set aside to support IT investment requirements

Insurance Reserve 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 10,000.00 60,000.00

Investment Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 A reserve held specifically for the revenue impact from potential land purchase

MTFS Equalisation Reserve 1,000,000.00 -1,000,000.00 0.00 2,699,013.00 2,699,013.00 MTFS reserve replenished in 20/21 through the release of business rates surplus

Open Spaces Reserve 678,720.40 197,461.73 876,182.13 -138,608.48 737,573.65

Organisational Development Reserve 145,572.00 -30,415.75 115,156.25 -11,566.12 103,590.13

Risk Management Reserve 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 250,000.00 260,000.00 Additional reserve to cover the risk of a pay award being agreed for April 2021

Transport Initiatives Reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Vehicle Replacement Reserve 1,000,000.00 139,954.62 1,139,954.62 853,045.38 1,993,000.00 Planned contribution plus addition to monies to cover potential shortfall in funding

Waste & Recycling development Reserve 90,835.00 -20,835.00 70,000.00 89,807.85 159,807.85

Horsford Reserve 60,455.13 9,701.74 70,156.87 4,886.55 75,043.42

Mayors Charity Reserve 6,238.25 -848.54 5,389.71 -51.29 5,338.42

Planning Obligations Reserve 5,808,354.99 3,165,974.57 8,974,329.56 645,912.63 9,620,242.19 Net increase in contributions from section 106 agreements.

General Fund Working Balance 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00

Business Rates COVID-19 Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,169,278.00 5,169,278.00 Expanded retail and nursery relief, paid in advance by Central Government, held in a reserve to pay for 21/22 deficit. 

Totals 14,687,784.66 2,490,184.14 17,177,968.80 14,603,357.96 31,781,326.76

81



Appendix C

Budget Profile 

for 2020/21

Capital Outturn 

2020/21

(Over)/ Under 

spend % Slippage

Financed from 

Capital 

Reserves

Financed from 

Capital Grants

Financed from 

Borrowing

Financed from 

Revenue

Expenditure

Council Land & Buildings £24,539,208.62 £20,534,907.16 £4,004,301.46 16.32% £0.00 £794,597.82 £19,740,309.34 £0.00

Vehicles & Equipment £800,965.00 £233,276.36 £567,688.64 70.88% £233,276.36 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

Community Grants £115,382.55 £0.00 £115,382.55 100.00% £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

Housing & Business Grants £500,000.00 £424,928.17 £75,071.83 15.01% £0.00 £424,928.17 £0.00 £0.00

Flexible use of capital receipts £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.00% £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

Total £25,955,556.17 £21,193,111.69 £4,762,444.48 18.35% £233,276.36 £1,219,525.99 £19,740,309.34 £0.00

Income

Council Land & Buildings £0.00 £997,346.84 £997,346.84 -

Vehicles & Equipment £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -

Housing & Business Grants £0.00 £506,587.47 £506,587.47

CIL Receipts £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -

Total £0.00 £1,503,934.31 £1,503,934.31 -

Capital Outturn 20/21

82



Appendix D 

Treasury Management Outturn Report 2020/21 

 
Introduction   

 
In February 2012 the Authority adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) 

which requires the Authority to approve treasury management semi-annual and annual reports.  

The Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21 was approved at a meeting on 28th 

January 2020. The Authority has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is 

therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of 

changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk remains 

central to the Authority’s treasury management strategy. 

Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code 

of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Authority to approve a treasury 

management strategy before the start of each financial year and, as a minimum, a semi-annual 

and annual treasury outturn report. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the 

Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a Capital 

Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital expenditure and 

financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments. The Authority’s Capital Strategy, 

complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was approved by full Council on 28th January 2020. 

External Context 

 

Economic background: The coronavirus pandemic dominated 2020/21, leading to almost the 

entire planet being in some form of lockdown during the year. The start of the financial year saw 

many central banks cutting interest rates as lockdowns caused economic activity to grind to a 

halt. The Bank of England cut Bank Rate to 0.1% and the UK government provided a range of fiscal 

stimulus measures, the size of which has not been seen in peacetime. 

Some good news came in December 2020 as two COVID-19 vaccines were given approval by the UK 

Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (MHRA). The UK vaccine rollout started in 

earnest; over 31 million people had received their first dose by 31st March. 

A Brexit trade deal was agreed with only days to spare before the 11pm 31st December 2020 

deadline having been agreed with the European Union on Christmas Eve. 

The Bank of England (BoE) held Bank Rate at 0.1% throughout the year but extended its 

Quantitative Easing programme by £150 billion to £895 billion at its November 2020 meeting. In 

its March 2021 interest rate announcement, the BoE noted that while GDP would remain low in 

the near-term due to COVID-19 lockdown restrictions, the easing of these measures means growth 

is expected to recover strongly later in the year. Inflation is forecast to increase in the near-term 

and while the economic outlook has improved there are downside risks to the forecast, including 

from unemployment which is still predicted to rise when the furlough scheme is eventually 

withdrawn. 

 

 

83



 

   

 

Government initiatives supported the economy and the Chancellor announced in the 2021 Budget 

a further extension to the furlough (Coronavirus Job Retention) scheme until September 2021. 

Access to support grants was also widened, enabling more self-employed people to be eligible for 

government help. Since March 2020, the government schemes have help protect more than 11 

million jobs.  

Despite the furlough scheme, unemployment still rose. Labour market data showed that in the 

three months to January 2021 the unemployment rate was 5.0%, in contrast to 3.9% recorded for 

the same period 12 months ago. Wages rose 4.8% for total pay in nominal terms (4.2% for regular 

pay) and was up 3.9% in real terms (3.4% for regular pay). Unemployment is still expected to 

increase once the various government job support schemes come to an end. 

Inflation has remained low over the 12 month period. Latest figures showed the annual headline 

rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) fell to 0.4% year/year in February, below expectations 

(0.8%) and still well below the Bank of England’s 2% target. The ONS’ preferred measure of CPIH 

which includes owner-occupied housing was 0.7% year/year (1.0% expected). 

After contracting sharply in Q2 (Apr-Jun) 2020 by 19.8% q/q, growth in Q3 and Q4 bounced back 

by 15.5% and 1.3% respectively. The easing of some lockdown measures in the last quarter of the 

calendar year enabled construction output to continue, albeit at a much slower pace than the 

41.7% rise in the prior quarter. When released, figures for Q1 (Jan-Mar) 2021 are expected to 

show a decline given the national lockdown.  

After collapsing at an annualised rate of 31.4% in Q2, the US economy rebounded by 33.4% in Q3 

and then a further 4.1% in Q4. The US recovery has been fuelled by three major pandemic relief 

stimulus packages totalling over $5 trillion. The Federal Reserve cut its main interest rate to 

between 0% and 0.25% in March 2020 in response to the pandemic and it has remained at the 

same level since. Joe Biden became the 46th US president after defeating Donald Trump. 

The European Central Bank maintained its base rate at 0% and deposit rate at -0.5% but in 

December 2020 increased the size of its asset purchase scheme to €1.85 trillion and extended it 

until March 2022. 

Financial markets: Monetary and fiscal stimulus helped provide support for equity markets which 

rose over the period, with the Dow Jones beating its pre-crisis peak on the back of 

outperformance by a small number of technology stocks. The FTSE indices performed reasonably 

well during the period April to November, before being buoyed in December by both the vaccine 

approval and Brexit deal, which helped give a boost to both the more internationally focused 

FTSE 100 and the more UK-focused FTSE 250, however they remain lower than their pre-pandemic 

levels. 

Ultra-low interest rates prevailed throughout most of the period, with yields generally falling 

between April and December 2020. From early in 2021 the improved economic outlook due to the 

new various stimulus packages (particularly in the US), together with the approval and successful 

rollout of vaccines, caused government bonds to sell off sharply on the back of expected higher 

inflation and increased uncertainty, pushing yields higher more quickly than had been 

anticipated. 

 

 

84



 

   

The 5-year UK benchmark gilt yield began the financial year at 0.18% before declining to -0.03% 

at the end of 2020 and then rising strongly to 0.39% by the end of the financial year. Over the 

same period the 10-year gilt yield fell from 0.31% to 0.19% before rising to 0.84%. The 20-year 

declined slightly from 0.70% to 0.68% before increasing to 1.36%. 

1-month, 3-month and 12-month SONIA bid rates averaged 0.01%, 0.10% and 0.23% respectively 

over the financial year. 

The yield on 2-year US treasuries was 0.16% at the end of the period, up from 0.12% at the 

beginning of January but down from 0.21% at the start of the financial year. For 10-year 

treasuries the end of period yield was 1.75%, up from both the beginning of 2021 (0.91%) and the 

start of the financial year (0.58%). 

German bund yields continue to remain negative across most maturities. 

Credit review: After spiking in March 2020, credit default swap spreads declined over the 

remaining period of the year to broadly pre-pandemic levels. The gap in spreads between UK 

ringfenced and non-ringfenced entities remained, albeit Santander UK is still an outlier compared 

to the other ringfenced/retail banks. At the end of the period Santander UK was trading the 

highest at 57bps and Standard Chartered the lowest at 32bps. The other ringfenced banks were 

trading around 33 and 34bps while Nationwide Building Society was 43bps. 

Credit rating actions to the period ending September 2020 have been covered in previous outturn 

reports. Subsequent credit developments include Moody’s downgrading the UK sovereign rating to 

Aa3 with a stable outlook which then impacted a number of other UK institutions, banks and local 

government. In the last quarter of the financial year S&P upgraded Clydesdale Bank to A- and 

revised Barclay’s outlook to stable (from negative) while Moody’s downgraded HSBC’s Baseline 

Credit Assessment to baa3 whilst affirming the long-term rating at A1. 

The vaccine approval and subsequent rollout programme are both credit positive for the financial 

services sector in general, but there remains much uncertainty around the extent of the losses 

banks and building societies will suffer due to the economic slowdown which has resulted due to 

pandemic-related lockdowns and restrictions. The institutions and durations on the Authority’s 

counterparty list recommended by treasury management advisors Arlingclose remain under 

constant review, but at the end of the period no changes had been made to the names on the list 

or the recommended maximum duration of 35 days. 

Local Context 

 
On 31st March 2020, the Authority had net borrowing of £767k arising from its revenue and capital 

income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the 

underlying resources available for investment. These factors are summarised in Table 1 below. 

 

85



 

   

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary 

 
31.3.21 
Actual 

£m 

General Fund CFR 55.25 

Less other debt liabilities 0.0 

Total CFR 55.25 

External borrowing 39.60 

Internal borrowing 15.65 

    Less: Usable reserves -36.70 

    Less: Working capital 0.98 

Net Borrowing 20.07 

  

Lower official interest rates have lowered the cost of short-term, temporary loans and investment 

returns from cash assets that can be used in lieu of borrowing. The Authority pursued its strategy 

of keeping borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal 

borrowing, in order to reduce risk and keep interest costs low.  

The treasury management position at 31st March 2021 and the change during the year is shown in 

Table 2 below. 

 

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary 

 
31.3.20 
Balance 

£m 

Movement 
£m 

31.3.21 
Balance 

£m 

31.3.21 
Rate 

% 

Long-term borrowing 

Short-term borrowing  

18.83 

26.00 

2.57 

-8.00 

21.40 

18.00 

2.01% 

0.35% 

Total borrowing 44.83 -5.43 39.40 1.54% 

Long-term investments 

Short-term investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

10.88 

26.00 

7.19 

0.57 

-21.00 

-2.19 

8.45 

5.00 

5.00 

4.67% 

1.49% 

0.07% 

Total investments 44.07 -25.62 18.45 2.46% 

Net borrowing 0.76 20.19 20.95  

 

 
Borrowing Update 
 
In November 2020 the PWLB published its response to the consultation on ‘Future Lending Terms’. 

From 26th November the margin on PWLB loans above gilt yields was reduced from 1.8% to 0.8% 

providing that the borrowing authority can confirm that it is not planning to purchase ‘investment 

assets primarily for yield’ in the current or next two financial years. Authorities that are 

purchasing or intending to purchase investment assets primarily for yield will not be able to 

access the PWLB except to refinance existing loans or externalise internal borrowing. As part of 

the borrowing process authorities will now be required to submit more detailed capital 

expenditure plans with confirmation of the purpose of capital expenditure from the Section 151 

Officer. The PWLB can now also restrict local authorities from borrowing in unusual or large 

amounts. 

 

86



 

   

Acceptable use of PWLB borrowing includes service delivery, housing, regeneration, preventative 

action, refinancing and treasury management. Misuse of PWL B borrowing could result in the 

PWLB requesting that Authority unwinds problematic transactions, suspending access to the PWLB 

and repayment of loans with penalties. 

 

Competitive market alternatives may be available for authorities with or without access to the 

PWLB. However, the financial strength of the individual authority and borrowing purpose will be 

scrutinised by commercial lenders.  

 

The Authority is not planning to purchase any investment assets primarily for yield within the 

next three years and so is able to take advantage of the reduction in the PWLB borrowing rate. 

 

Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA): The MBA revised its standard loan terms and framework 

agreement. Guarantees for the debt of other borrowers are now proportional and limited and a 

requirement to make contribution loans in the event of a default by a borrower has been 

introduced. The agency has issued 5-year floating rate and 40-year fixed rate bonds in 2020, in 

both instances Lancashire County Council is the sole borrower and guarantor. A planned third 

bond issuance by Warrington Borough Council was withdrawn in early December after the 

reduction in PWLB borrowing rates. 

If the Authority intends future borrowing through the MBA, it will first ensure that it has 

thoroughly scrutinised the legal terms and conditions of the arrangement and is satisfied with 

them.  

UK Infrastructure Bank: In his March 2021 budget the Chancellor confirmed that a UK 

Infrastructure Bank will be set up with £4bn in lending earmarked for local authorities from the 

summer of 2021. Loans will be available at gilt yield plus 0.60%, 0.20% lower than the PWLB 

certainty rate. A bidding process to access these loans is likely with a preference to projects 

likely to help the government meet its Net Zero emissions target. However other “high value and 

complex economic infrastructure projects” may also be considered. 

Borrowing strategy 

At 31st March 2021 the Authority held £39.4m of loans, a decrease of £5.44m since 31st March 

2020, as part of its strategy for funding previous and current years’ capital programmes. 

Outstanding loans on 31st March are summarised in Table 3 below. 

 

Table 3: Borrowing Position 

 
31.3.20 
Balance 

£m 

Net 
Movement 

£m 

31.3.21 
Balance 

£m 

Public Works Loan Board 

Banks (LOBO) 

Banks (fixed-term) 

Local authorities (long-term) 

Local authorities (short-term) 

18.84 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

26.00 

2.56 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-8.00 

21.40 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

18.00 

Total borrowing 44.84 -5.44 39.40 

 

The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk 

balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period for 

which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term 

plans change being a secondary objective.  

 

87



 

   

The Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme and an estimated borrowing 

requirement as determined by the Liability Benchmark which also takes into account usable 

reserves and working capital. Having considered the appropriate duration and structure of the 

Authority’s borrowing need based on realistic projections, the Authority decided to take some 

advantage of the fall in external borrowing rates and borrowed £3.0m of medium-term repayment 

loans (EIP) whilst allowing £8.0m of short term fixed rate loans to mature without replacement. 

This new loan structure provides some longer-term certainty and stability to the debt portfolio 

and creates a more rounded debt portfolio.   

 

The Authority’s borrowing decisions are not predicated on any one outcome for interest rates and 

a balanced portfolio of short- and long-term borrowing was maintained.  

 

Long-dated Loans borrowed 
Amount Rate  Period  

£m % (Years) 

PWLB Maturity Loan 1  11.00 2.35 40 

PWLB Maturity Loan 2  3.00 2.47 40 

PWLB EIP Loan 1 5.00 1.05 15 

PWLB EIP Loan 2 3.00 1.80 15 

Total borrowing 22.00 2.00   

 

 

PWLB funding margins have lurched quite substantially and there remains a strong argument for 

diversifying funding sources, particularly if rates can be achieved on alternatives which are below 

gilt yields + 0.80%. The Authority will evaluate and pursue these lower cost solutions and 

opportunities with its advisor Arlingclose. 

Treasury Investment Activity  
 
Throughout 2020/21 the Authority received central government funding to support small and 

medium businesses during the coronavirus pandemic through grant schemes. £29.75m was 

received, temporarily invested in short-dated, liquid instruments such as call accounts and Money 

Market Funds. £26.32m was disbursed by the end of March.   

 

The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of 

expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the year, the Authority’s investment 

balances ranged between £45.18 and £18.993 million due to timing differences between income 

and expenditure. The investment position is shown in table 4 below. 

 

88



 

   

Table 4: Treasury Investment Position 

  

31.3.20 Net  31.3.21 31.3.21 

Balance Movement Balance 
Income 
Return 

£m £m £m % 

Banks & building societies (unsecured) 6.187 -4.187 2.0 0.09% 

Government (incl. local authorities) 20.0 -18.0 2.0 0.22% 

Money Market Funds 7.0 -4.0 3.0 0.01% 

Registered Providers 3.0 0.0 3.0 1.70% 

Other Pooled Funds   8.993 0.0 8.993 4.67% 

Total investments 45.180 -26.187 18.993 2.46% 

 

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest its funds prudently, 

and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments before seeking the 

optimum rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing money is to strike an 

appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults 

and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. 

 

Continued downward pressure on short-dated cash rate brought net returns on sterling low 

volatility net asset value money market funds (LVNAV MMFs) close to zero even after some 

managers have temporarily lowered their fees. At this stage net negative returns are not the 

central case of most MMF managers over the short-term, and fee waivers should maintain positive 

net yields, but the possibility cannot be ruled out. 

 

Deposit rates with the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF) have continued to fall 

and are now largely around zero. 

 

The net return on Money Market Funds net of fees, which had fallen after Bank Rate was cut to 

0.1% in March, are now at or very close to zero; fund management companies have temporarily 

lowered or waived fees to avoid negative net returns.  

 

The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts from Arlingclose’s quarterly 

investment benchmarking in Table 5 below. 

 
Table 5: Investment Benchmarking – Treasury investments managed in-house  

  
Credit 
Score 

Credit 
Rating 

Bail-in 
Exposure 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(days) 

Rate of 
Return 

% 

31.03.2020 4.03 AA- 31% 86 1.44% 

31.03.2021 5.4 A+ 50% 93 2.46% 

Similar LAs 4.63 A+ 65% 40 1.38% 

All LAs 4.63 A+ 63% 14 0.90% 

 

89



 

   

Externally Managed Pooled Funds: £8.5m of the Authority’s investments are invested in 

externally managed strategic pooled equity, multi-asset and property funds where short-term 

security and liquidity are lesser considerations, and the objectives instead are regular revenue 

income and long-term price stability. These funds generated a total return of £941k, comprising a 

£367k income return which is used to support services in year, and £574k of capital growth. 

 

The Authority is invested in equity, multi-asset and property funds. During the initial phase of the 

pandemic in March 2020, the sharp falls corporate bond and equity markets had a negative 

impact on the value of the Council’s pooled fund holdings and was reflected in the 31st March 

2020 fund valuations with every fund registering negative capital returns over a 12-month period.  

Since March 2020 there here has been improvement in market sentiment which is reflected in an 

increase in capital values of these equity and multi-asset income funds in the Authority’s 

portfolio. The recovery in UK equities has lagged those of US and European markets.  

 

Similar to many other property funds, dealing (i.e. buying or selling units) in the CCLA Local 

Authorities’ Property Fund was suspended by the fund in March 2020 and lifted in September.  

There was also a change to redemption terms for the CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund; from 

September 2020 investors are required to give at least 90 calendar days’ notice for redemptions.  

 

Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a 

notice period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s medium- to 

long-term investment objectives are regularly reviewed. Strategic fund investments are made in 

the knowledge that capital values will move both up and down on months, quarters and even 

years; but with the confidence that over a three- to five-year period total returns will exceed 

cash interest rates.  

 

Following the cut in Bank rate from 0.75% to 0.10% in March 2020, the Authority had expected to 

receive significantly lower income from its cash and short-dated money market investments, 

including money market funds in 2020/21, as rates on cash investments are close to zero percent.  

Income from most of the Authority’s externally managed funds will also be lower than in 2019/20 

and earlier years. Whilst the arrival and approval of vaccines against COVID-19 and the removal of 

Brexit uncertainty that had weighed on UK equities were encouraging developments, dividend and 

income distribution was dependent on company earnings in a very challenging and uncertain 

trading environment as well as enforced cuts or deferral required by regulatory authorities.   

 
Non-Treasury Investments 
 
The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now covers all the 

financial assets of the Authority as well as other non-financial assets which the Authority holds 

primarily for financial return. This is replicated in the Investment Guidance issued by Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government’s (MHCLG) and Welsh Government, in which the 

definition of investments is further broadened to also include all such assets held partially for 

financial return.  

 

90



 

   

The Authority also held £47m of such investments in directly owned property as shown in the 

table below: 

Property Purchase date Purchase Price Sector 

Challenge House, 

Tewkesbury 

Dec-16 £8,730,000 Office 

Challenge House, 

Tewkesbury 

Dec-16 £5,820,000 Industrial 

Retail units, Clevedon  Jul-06 £2,199,250 Retail 

The Chase, Hertford  Nov-17 £3,700,000 Office 

SPL House, Ellesmere 

Port 

Nov-17 £3,490,000 Industrial 

Wickes, Trowbridge  Dec-17 £5,542,000 Retail 

Edmund House, 

Leamington 

Aug-18 £3,610,000 Office 

M&S, Walton on the 

Naze  

Oct-18 £4,335,000 Retail 

Vaughan Park, Tipton May-20 £9,365,000 Industrial 

Volvo, Crawley Dec-20 £9,400,000 Alternatives 

Total 
 

£56,191,250 
 

 

These investments generated £2.713k of investment income for the Authority after taking account 

of direct costs, representing a rate of return of 4.83%.  

 

Treasury Performance  

The Authority measures the financial performance of its treasury management activities both in 

terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship to benchmark interest rates, as 

shown in table 6 below. 

 

Table 6: Performance 

 
Actual 

£ 
Budget 

£ 
Over/ 

Under £ 
Actual  

% 
Benchmark 

% 
Over/ 
under 

Treasury Investments 552,712 501,300 51,412 1.50% 0.07% 1.63% 

Borrowing 552,461 513,000 -39,461 1.34% N/A N/A 

GRAND TOTAL -250 -11,700 11,950 N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

Compliance  

 

The Chief Finance Officer reports that all treasury management activities undertaken during the 

year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved Treasury 

Management Strategy. Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 7 

below. 

 

Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is demonstrated 

in table 7 below. 

 

91



 

   

Table 7: Debt Limits 

 
2020/21 

Maximum 

31.3.21 

Actual 

2020/21 
Operational 
Boundary 

2020/21 
Authorised 

Limit 

Complied? 

 

Borrowing £44.84m £39.40m £55.0m £60.0m Yes 

Total debt £44.84m £39.40m £55.0m £55.0m Yes 

 
Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not significant if 

the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash flow, and this is not 

counted as a compliance failure.  

 

Table 8: Investment Limits 

 
 

Maximum 

30.9.21 

Actual 

2020/21 

Limit 

Complied? 

Yes/No 

Any single organisation, except the UK 
Government 

£2.0m £2.0m £2.0m Yes 

Any group of organisations under the same 
ownership 

£2.0m £2.0m £2.0m Yes 

Any group of pooled funds under the same 
management 

£3.93m £3.93 £6.0m Yes 

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s 
nominee account 

£0.0m £0.0m £4.0m Yes 

Limit per non-UK country  £2.0m £0.0m £3.0m Yes 

Registered providers and registered social 
landlords 

£3.0m £3.0m £6.0m Yes 

Unsecured investments with building societies £0.0m £0.0m £2.0m Yes 

Loans to unrated corporates £0.0m £0.0m £1.0m Yes 

Money Market Funds £10.0m  £3.0m 

50% of 
total 

portfolio 
balance 

Yes 

 

Treasury Management Indicators 

 

The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the 

following indicators. 

 

Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by 

monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This is calculated 

by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, 

weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their 

perceived risk. 

 

 
31.3.21 
Actual 

2020/21 
Target 

Complied? 

Portfolio average credit rating A+ A Yes 

 
 

92



 

   

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to 

refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of all borrowing were: 

 
31.3.21 
Actual 

Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Complied? 

Under 12 months 45.69% 100% 0% Yes 

12 months and within 24 months 0.0% 100% 0% Yes 

24 months and within 5 years 0.0% 100% 0% Yes 

5 years and within 10 years 0.0% 100% 0% Yes 

10 years and above  54.31% 100% 0% Yes 

 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the 

earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. 

 

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than a year: The purpose of this indicator is to 

control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its 

investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the 

period end were: 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Actual principal invested beyond year end £3.0m £0.0m £0.0m 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £6.0m £5.0m £4.0m 

Complied? Yes Yes Yes 

Other 

 

CIPFA consultations: In February 2021 CIPFA launched two consultations on changes to its 

Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code of Practice. These follow the Public Accounts 

Committee’s recommendation that the prudential framework should be further tightened 

following continued borrowing by some authorities for investment purposes. These are principles-

based consultations and will be followed by more specific proposals later in the year.  

In the Prudential Code the key area being addressed is the statement that “local authorities must 

not borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to profit from the investment 

of the extra sums borrowed”.  Other proposed changes include the sustainability of capital 

expenditure in accordance with an authority’s corporate objectives, i.e. recognising climate, 

diversity and innovation, commercial investment being proportionate to budgets, expanding the 

capital strategy section on commercial activities, replacing the “gross debt and the CFR” with the 

liability benchmark as a graphical prudential indicator. 

 

Proposed changes to the Treasury Management Code include requiring job specifications and 

“knowledge and skills” schedules for treasury management roles to be included in the Treasury 

Management Practices (TMP) document and formally reviewed, a specific treasury management 

committee for MiFID II professional clients and a new TMP 13 on Environmental, Social and 

Governance Risk Management.  

  

IFRS 16: The implementation of the new IFRS 16 Leases accounting standard has been delayed for 

a further year until 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

93



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 13 July 2021 

Subject: Carbon Reduction Action Plan 

Report of: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Corporate Lead: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

Following the declaration of a climate emergency in October 2019, Officers and Members of 
the Climate Change and Flood Risk Management Group undertook a baseline audit of the 
Council’s current carbon consumption. This was reported to Council in July 2020 along with an 
overarching action plan designed to achieve carbon neutrality in Council services by 2030.  

Despite the impact of coronavirus on service delivery, good progress has been made on a 
range of actions in the first twelve months. This includes the application and award of external 
grant funding, totalling £305,200, to support the change of the heating system within the 
Council Offices, timetabled for later in 2021.  

The appendix also includes a draft action plan for year two. The actions recommended are 
aimed at formally embedding climate change within the Council, delivery of a number of 
actions which will reduce the Council’s carbon consumption and an initial study scoping the 
potential requirements of the Council should it wish to pursue a boroughwide carbon neutrality 
target. As always, the action plan has been prepared in acknowledgement of the resources 
available to pursue the ambition. 

To support the delivery of the action plan, the report requests the support and recommendation 
from Executive Committee for the addition of a permanent Carbon Reduction Programme 
Officer being added to the base budget from April 2022. Whilst this request is out of sync with 
the usual budget timetable, it is made now to give the best possible chance of a successful 
recruitment of an Officer this summer in order to help support delivery and take advantage of 
the wider opportunities.   

Recommendation: 

1. To CONSIDER the progress achieved in year one of the Council’s Carbon 
Reduction Action Plan and the recommended year two action plan. 

2. To NOTE the request to Council for a permanent Carbon Reduction Programme 
Officer post. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

To give Members a formal opportunity to consider progress against the carbon reduction 
programme and endorse the future actions. Executive Committee will approve the year two 
action plan and make a recommendation to Council for additional, ongoing resources. 

 

94

Agenda Item 11



 

Resource Implications: 

Actions highlighted within the report will require funding from the Council’s asset management 
reserve and the newly formed carbon reduction reserve. In addition, the Council has secured 
£284,200 of external grant funding to deliver the replacement heating system project. Further 
external funding will be sourced but it is likely that additional delivery budgets will be required 
in future years. 

The report also recommends the employment of a permanent Carbon Reduction Programme 
Officer to support the Council’s green ambitions. Whilst this post will be subject to job 
evaluation, it is estimated that the cost of a full-time, permanent member of staff will be circa 
£40,600. If approved, this post would form part of the ongoing establishment and base budget 
of the Council from April 2022. It will replace the annual request for one-off support funding for 
climate change. 

Legal Implications: 

None associated with the report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

If sufficient resources to allow the delivery of the ambition are not allocated, the Council will not 
be able to deliver all of the points within the Council motion and will not be able to play a pro-
active role in anything wider than energy efficiency measures within the Council Offices. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

The progress against the action plan will be reported on a quarterly basis to the Climate 
Change and Flood Risk Management Group and an annual outturn report produced for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Environmental Implications:  

The action plan aims to deliver the changes necessary in order to ensure the Council reduces 
its carbon footprint. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95



1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council declared a climate emergency at a Council meeting in 
October 2019. 

The motion as agreed is reproduced below: 

• Declare a ‘climate emergency’. 

• Commit to doing all in its power to make Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices 
carbon neutral by 2030. 

• Expand the remit of the existing Flood Risk Management Group to deal with 
climate change matters with the following delegations to the Borough Solicitor in 
consultation with the Group: 

1. Preparation of revised Terms of Reference to include an audit of the 
Council’s current position, an action plan to achieve carbon neutrality by 
2030, funding and promotion of good practice throughout the Borough 
including buildings that provide a public service, such as the Tewkesbury 
Leisure Centre; and 

2. Membership of the Group, taking account of its wider role. 

• Call upon central government to provide additional powers and resources to 
support local and national action towards the 2030 target. 

• Commit to working with partners in Gloucestershire to achieve countywide carbon 
neutrality aims. 

1.2 In July 2020, the Climate Change and Flood Risk Management Group recommended to 
Council the approval of the initial climate change and carbon reduction baseline audit 
report and the adoption of the action plan. 

1.3 This report details progress made against the initial action plan targets over the last 12 
months and recommends the adoption of new targets for the next twelve months to 
ensure the Council remains on course to meet its stated target. 

1.4 The report also sets out the need for permanent resources to be allocated to support the 
delivery of the action plan. 

2.0 ACTION PLAN 

2.1 Following the adoption of the Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Audit and Action 
Plan, Officers have been reviewing the overarching targets and working on the delivery 
of a number of actions to advance the Council’s ambition. As with all services, 
coronavirus had an impact on delivery of the action plan in 2020 as did a change of 
corporate leadership in December. Nonetheless, good progress has been made through 
the first half of 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



2.2 Appendix A, taken from a presentation to the Climate Change and Flood Risk 
Management Group, highlights the achievements in the first year of the action plan 
including: 

• the application and agreement for external funding to support the feasibility study 
and delivery of replacing the gas boiler heating system at the Council Offices; 

• significant work undertaken to establish energy diaries for all Council operational 
buildings. The diaries provide a baseline of energy usage and carbon 
consumption and a means of monitoring these issues in the medium term; 

• the survey work already undertaken at both the Roses Theatre and our domestic 
properties; and, 

• a range of smaller achievements including the appointment of the Countywide 
Climate Change Coordinator and the works in our car parks. 

2.3 Whist further work is being undertaken to compile the 2020 update of energy and carbon 
consumption at our other operational properties and through mileage incurred, the data 
for the Council Offices shows a significant reduction in electricity consumption (25%) but 
an increase in gas consumption (8%) for Tewkesbury’s operations. This would be 
expected as a result of the change to working patterns during the coronavirus pandemic. 
The demand on electricity, particularly from IT equipment, has fallen in the offices as 
staff have been based at home whilst gas usage has increased as the normal levels of 
staffing, and the associated natural level of heat coming from the workforce, has 
decreased but the working office temperature needs to be maintained at a consistent 
level. The lack of zoning and the open office nature of the workplace has also not helped 
to reduce gas consumption. Overall, around 16 tonnes of CO2 has been saved by the 
Council in 2020 compared to 2019. 

2.4 Appendix A also highlights the actions recommended by Officers to take forward the 
Council ambition over the next twelve months. The recommended year 2 action plan 
contains actions that cover a number of aspects of delivery but they have been grouped 
under four themes: 

• Communications & Engagement 

• Technical implementation 

• Scoping studies and Policies & Schemes 

• Budgets & External funding 

2.5 The action plan has been set against the backdrop of the resources available but 
provides a broad range of actions which will further embed carbon reduction within the 
Council, will deliver a number of projects with tangible outcomes and will cast one eye to 
the future as we source further funding opportunities and consider carbon reduction in 
the wider borough.   

3.0 CARBON REDUCTION PROGRAMME OFFICER 

3.1 The carbon reduction agenda and delivery of the action plan now sit with Finance and 
Asset Management. The agenda is supported by a one-off allocation of funding of 
£50,000 in the current year plus ongoing funding to part finance the Countywide Climate 
Change Coordinator. The one-off funding is being utilised to fund a temporary, part-time 
resource to deal with all aspects of climate change. This role is supported by input from 
the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the Asset Manager. Whilst specific 
services support specific items relating to the green agenda, such as planning policies 
and recycling education, the part-time role is the only dedicated climate change resource 
in the Council. 

97



3.2 Whilst good progress has been made over the last six months to deliver the year one 
action plan, it is apparent that the current resource allocation is not sufficient and the 
time being dedicated by both the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the Asset 
Manager is not sustainable in the longer term against other work demands. The 
employment of the current Officer in a part-time capacity has worked well and allowed 
the Council to utilise a senior role to establish the action plan and build the foundations 
for future successful delivery; however, with those building blocks now in place, the 
delivery aspect will require a permanent full-time role. 

3.3 There are many actions in the pipeline for delivery in the medium term in order to 
address the Council’s own carbon neutrality, all of which will require significant input for 
project specification and project delivery. In addition to this, further strategic work will be 
required to define our medium to long term path and to construct appropriate medium 
term strategies. As highlighted, there are a number of activities already being undertaken 
by Council services, all linked to supporting the environment and carbon reduction, that 
need coordinating and presenting under the umbrella of carbon reduction/climate 
change. 

3.4 In addition to the above, there are opportunities to attract grant funding and deliver green 
projects beyond the remit of the council service property, but currently capacity does not 
exist to investigate and take forward those opportunities. Finally, whilst an early scoping 
exercise will be undertaken to understand the requirements of a carbon neutrality 
strategy wider than just within the council, if members wished to take this forward and 
perhaps declare carbon neutral targets for the Borough, as our neighbouring councils 
have done, this will require a significant amount of officer time. 

3.5 It is clear to Officers that the scope of works falling under this agenda is significant and a 
dedicated resource is required. This issue has also been recognised by the Lead 
Member for Clean and Green Environment and discussions have been taking place on 
how best to meet the workload requirement. Those discussions have resulted in the 
recommendation for the approval of a fulltime Carbon Reduction Programme Officer, 
with an estimated ongoing cost of £40,600. Whilst the Council faces tough financial 
challenges, and decisions to increase the base budget in light of those challenges are 
not taken lightly, it is imperative that investment is made in this area as soon as possible 
so that the Council can progress on its journey towards carbon neutrality and deliver the 
Council priority. 

3.6 Should Members approve the addition to base budget, recruitment will begin immediately 
and, if successful, the post will be funded from the current one-off allocation in the 
current year before it becomes part of the ongoing base budget. 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 The Council could continue with an annual one-off allocation of resources to support the 
agenda. This would not provide certainty to allow the recruitment of a permanent 
member of staff and would jeopardise the successful delivery of the action plan. 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Details of the year one and year two action plan targets have been discussed with the 
Climate Change and Flood Risk Management Group.  

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Audit and Action Plan 

 

98



7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change’s (UNFCCC) 21st 
Conference of Parties (COP21) and adopted on December 12, 2015, (The Paris 
Agreement). 

International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) special report on ‘Global Warming of 
1.5°C’, following the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change in 2015. (October 
2018). 

Climate Change Act 2008. 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 As set out in the report 

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 The Carbon Reduction Action Plan targets carbon neutrality for Council activities by 
2030. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 None 

11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11.1 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Audit and Action Plan – Council 
28 July 2020 

 
Contact Officer:  Head of Finance and Asset Management 
 01684 272005 simon.dix@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
 
Appendices:  Appendix A – Year One Outturn and Year Two Action Plan 

99

mailto:simon.dix@tewkesbury.gov.uk


TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CN2030 YEAR 1 REVIEW & YEAR 2 ACTION PLAN

Appendix A

100



Context 

 Report of carbon baseline for 2019 was developed in spring 2020

 High level 10 year Action Plan produced to identify pathways to 2030 
carbon neutrality

 Full Council adopted the report and action plan in late July 2020

 Implementation of year 1 objectives commenced in August 2020

 Internal management team comprising Dept. CEO (then Head of 
Finance and Asset Management), Asset Manager, Facilities Officer and 
Low Carbon Consultant established, with often weekly progress 
meetings held 

101



Year 1 Objectives from Action Plan
Objective Success Indicators Outcome

1 Support the creation of Monitoring & Targeting processes across all elements to ensure the
capture of accurate data alongside the finalisation of the ongoing emissions tracking system

Energy diaries created 
and in use

All energy diaries created, 
including SMT reporting 
graphs. TBC Officer 
populating with ongoing data

2 Specification for procurement and securing appropriate quotes (against procurement policy) for 
works relating to the Action Plan/Baseline Emissions Report recommendations

Documents produced to 
support procurement
process

Completed and produced 
resulting from successful 
PSDS funding application

3 Production of full Business Case detail (prioritising emissions and finance) of all relevant Action 
Plan activities so as to support informed decision making

Produced Business cases Being developed as required, 
however, initial success with 
PSDS bid £305,700 secured

4 Coordination of any necessary feasibility studies for the Heat Pump and/or Solar Panel 
scenarios to include:
A) Network Operator position to supply capacity levels
B) Planning for location of equipment for installation
C) Contingency Plans (Battery Storage)
D) Full cost report for recommended measures (estimated costs produced at application were 

verified by cost consultants, however Feasibility consultants suggest costs significantly 
higher.  The actual position will not be fully known until procurement is complete

A) N/A – no network 
impact

B) Pre plan map of sites
C) N/A
D) Known budgets for 

measures

N/A – no network impact
Full Feas study complete
N/A – not required
Headline costs produced, 
exact costs to follow on 
procurement

5 Increase the level of sub-metering of services so as to enable accurate and specific reporting of 
impacts to be made

More granular data 
available

Not part of funding 
application.  Delayed to yr 2

6 Regular production and presentation of update/progress reports to Full Council on at least a 
quarterly basis

Meetings held with
positive feedback 

Annual reporting to O & S and 
Executive

7 Ensure council representation throughout Gloucestershire as required at meetings or networks
and feedback relevant information and actions

Meetings attended and 
PR conducted

1 x press release issued and 
attendance at Glos Local 
Nature Partnership

102



A look at the main specific outputs

1. Monitoring and Targeting – Energy diaries

2. Detailed surveys informing implementation plans: Domestic & Roses

3. Applications for External Funding

4. PSC: Low Carbon Skills Fund & the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme103



1) Monitoring & Targeting

NB test 
data only

104



2a) Surveys for Domestic Estate

105



2b) Surveys for Roses
 Severn Wye Energy Agency’s Target 2030 project provided >£10,000 of 

technical survey support at no cost to the council

 Potential for a 30% grant contribution from T2030

 Ineligible for PSDS funding 

 Other external grants identified for low level support

 Next steps are to:

 Secure quotes for works

 Complete funding applications

 Commence implementing the decarbonisation plan

106



3) External Funding

Successful submissions:

 BEIS – Low Carbon Skills Fund – PSC Heating and PV Feasibility: £21,700

 BEIS Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme – Heat & PV measures: £284,000

 S Wye Target 2030: Technical Survey & access to 30% install grant: >£10,000

Funding identified for 2021-22:

 Theatre Trust: Sustainability actions (Roses): up to £20,000

 Arts Council: Various schemes (Roses) typical award circa £50,000

 SW Energy Hub Grant (Domestic): £25,000

 Domestic retrofit grants (LAD2, HUG): typical award £5-£10,000

 Possible Government subsidy grant for domestic Heat Pumps: circa £4,000

107



4) PSC & the 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme

 Well reported to working group during year 1

 Feasibility study recommendations lead to change from GSHP to ASHP, which 
is in final stage of securing funder approval to proceed

 Cost estimated from Feasibility study of £650k subject to procurement. To be 
funded from PSDS grant and asset management reserves

 Expressions of interest already sought by council, and procurement route 
identified.  We are ready to go to market upon approval from BEIS/SALIX

 Whilst implementation timescales are becoming tight, end of September 
completion remains the aim, however flexibility on the funder deadline is 
likely 

108



4) PSC and PSDS Continued…

Measures confirmed as:

 Hybrid ASHP: minimum use of refrigerant

 Localised system offers better in–use efficiency

 Upgrades to the heating control system increases savings

 Solar PV (44KW) in form of a carport in rear car park 

remains the intended solution, however it is possible to use

roof space should costs dictate.

Emission reductions from heating in the order of 74%, with 

further reductions achieved from control and PV systems 

109



Additional Outputs Achieved in 2020
 Waste Management Systems 

 Domestic Surveys & external funding research 

 Roses Theatre Surveys & external funding research 

 Solar Powered Car Park Machines 

 LED Car Park Lighting 

 Cycle Scheme 

 Appointment of County wide Coordinator

 Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership participation & SW Energy Hub 
Interviews to define new iteration of Green Homes Grant approach for Glos

 Press Releases 

 Electricity Bill for O & S Committee 

110



PSC Data for 2020

 At the current time only PSC data is available. We have started a review of all 
2020 data which will be compared against the baseline and reported in the 
month ahead.

 Against the 2019 Baseline:

 Emissions from Electricity for TBC has REDUCED by 20.79 tonnes, or 25%

 Emissions from Gas for TBC has INCREASED by 4.88 tonnes, or 8%

 Emissions from Electricity for whole office has REDUCED by 34.53 tonnes, or 24%

 Emissions from Gas for whole office has INCREASED by 8.47 tonnes, or 7%

111



Year 2 ‘20 Point’ Action Plan (2021-22)
Objective Success Indicators by end March 2022

1 Communications & Engagement
A) CN2030 Branding and web presence
B) Climate Change (Service) Champions
C) Staff Training – carbon literacy
D) Appoint CN2030 Officer
E) Establish protocol/ Plan of action with County-wide Climate Coordinator
F) Ensure environmental impacts are ‘properly considered in Committee Reports

A) Agreed, utilise and maintained branding and web presence
B) At least 1 CC Champion ‘recruited’ in each council service area
C) Production and delivery of carbon literacy training 
D) Officer in post by December & induction complete (Feb ‘22)
E) Action Plan outputs achieved once plan agreed
F) Report template updated

2 Technical Implementation
A)   PSC Low carbon heating and Solar PV systems
B) Further PSC Energy Efficiency improvements – LED lighting retrofit & Water Flow Restrictors
C) Electric Vehicle Charge Points (EVCP) at car parks
D) Conversion of car fleet to electric
E) Agree Action Plans & Commencement of Domestic property decarbonisation
F) Commencement of Roses Theatre decarbonisation plans (subject to funding)

A) Systems installed and operational with no negative user impacts
B) Assessments & install costs secured – installation dates planned
C) Scoping study to determine sites, system size, cost & charges for use
D) Conversion cost defined, business case approved and date agreed
E) Source quotes for works. Agree tech by tech or property approach
F) Funding secured for initial measures that are installed March ‘22

3 Scoping Studies and Policies & Schemes
A) Detailed feasibility studies in support of Roses Theatre decarbonisation plans (as applicable)
B) Commence planning and Scoping study for implications of and opportunities for Borough 

wide decarbonisation consideration
C) Update Tree Safety Management Policy
D) Electric vehicle car purchase scheme

A)   Completed feas studies as req’d to enable installations to commence
B)   A Carbon Neutral Tewkesbury Borough high level plan mapped
C) Policies updated
D) Scheme for EV purchasing produced and available for staff to utilise

4 Budgets & External Funding
A) Agree council budget (£100k) for 2021-22 CN2030 implementation
B) Secure Theatre Trust grant & (where available) Target 2030 grant for Roses decarbonisation
C) Secure LAD2 funding for domestic property decarbonisation 
D) Research and applications to wider funding streams (as applicable/available)

A) 2021-22 CN 2030 internal budget agreed and spent on demonstrable 
emission reduction measures

B) External funding secured and spent on emission reduction measures
C) External funding secured and spent on emission reduction measures
D) Funding research doc produced and new applications submitted

112



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 13 July 2021 

Subject: Annual Workforce Development Strategy Review 2020/21 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Organisational Development 

Number of Appendices: Three 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

In 2019, the Council approved a five year Workforce Development Strategy (2019 – 2024). 
This report covers the progress made in 2020/21 and actions planned for 2021/22 (Appendix 
1) and key performance outturn for 2020/21 (Appendix 2). The last report was in November 
2020 but it has been agreed that future reports will be in July for the previous financial year. 
Also attached is an overview of the organisational support led by the HR team, in response to 
COVID-19 (Appendix 3). 

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER progress made against delivery of the Workforce Development Strategy 
during 2020/21 and the actions planned for 2021/22. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

It was agreed an annual update on delivery of the strategy would be presented to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None, other than Officer time to implement the action plan.  

Legal Implications: 

None directly arising from this report.  

Risk Management Implications: 

If the Council does not have an effective strategy in place, there is a risk the Council may not 
maximise the opportunity to develop its workforce.    

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Progress in delivering the action plan will be reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
an annual basis.  

 

113

Agenda Item 12



 

Environmental Implications:  

None directly arising from this report.  

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 In 2019, the Council approved a five year Workforce Development Strategy for the 
years 2019 – 24. This report set out the programme for improvement and development 
of workforce, human resources and organisational development across the council. 
The report was split into 5 key themes:  

• Releasing Productivity  

• Commercialisation 

• Digital Transformation 

• Workforce Resilience 

• Being a Great Place to Work 

Each of these had a number of sub-themes. The strategy also set out a number of key 
performance measures by which to measure the Council’s progress and success. This 
report provides an overview and assurance that the actions within the strategy are 
being progressed.  

2.0 IMPACT OF COVID-19  

2.1 As with all aspects of the Council, the progress against plans has been impacted by 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The HR & OD team has needed to respond to unforeseen 
needs, particularly around policy changes, remote working, wellbeing and training and 
has redeployed members from our own small team to support the COVID-19 
response. Additionally, actions which depended on other teams, such as the HR self-
service platform, have also been impacted by COVID-19 demands on those teams.   

3.0 PROGRESS TO DATE – KEY POINTS  

3.1 • Significant reduction in average sickness absence rates to 9.7 days per 
employee from 12.4 days (2019/20).  

• Maintained a low labour turnover of 6.1%, including a very low labour turnover 
rate of only 1% within the first year, which indicates that staff enjoy working for 
Tewkesbury Borough Council and that our recruitment and induction processes 
are working well.  

• Workforce budgets remained under control and were slightly underspent 
(5.84% variance).  

• The team has provided support to the Council’s COVID-19 response with 
members of the team temporarily redeployed.  

• The team has also been responsive to the needs of the Council and its 
employees during the COVID-19 crisis with the development and adjustment of 
policies, new training and new welfare support alongside the normal workload.  

 

  

114



4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None. 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 The Workforce Development Strategy is an organisational strategy and, as such, was 
developed with full engagement from the management cohort.  The strategy was also 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to approval by Executive 
Committee.  

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Council Plan (2020-24) 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Digital and ICT strategies 

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  None. 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 Managed within current resources and budget.  

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 None. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 Effective workforce management will contribute to overall value for money 

11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services   

01684 272002 graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
 

Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Workforce Development Action Plan 2020/21 and  
                       2021/22 
 Appendix 2 -  Key Performance Measures Outturn 2020/21 
 Appendix 3 – Organisational health and wellbeing support in response 
                to COVID-19.   
 

115

mailto:graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

Workforce Development Strategy 2019 - 2024 
Delivery Plan Review 

Annual Delivery Plan Actions 2021/2022 

 

The Workforce Development Strategy is a 5 year plan, commencing last year in 2019. The below table illustrates progress to date on the 

areas set out in the strategy and sets out actions to the end of 2022.  

 

1. Releasing Productivity 
 

Areas Identified  
 

Status Progress on 2020/2021 actions Actions for 2021- 2022 

 
IT and digital skills 
 
Induction 
 
Culture of continuous 
improvement 
 
 
 
 

☺ Celebrate and reward continuous improvement behaviours / 
digital advances etc: This is being considered by a new Culture 
and Communications working group. It will also link with a 
more visual way of saying thank you to colleagues.   
 
Identify core IT and digital skills for each job role: This action 
has been delayed by COVID, but IT and digital skills have now 
been built into the new draft job description / person 
specification template. 
 
Identify IT training needs for now and future developments: A 

training matrix is in development which will incorporate any IT 

requirements. In the meantime, we have delivered workshops 

with an external trainer for individual teams on optimising use 

of Microsoft Teams, Effective Remote Working and Managing 

Remote Teams to ensure that staff and managers had the skills 

and technical knowledge to effectively work remotely. In 

Deliver reward and ‘thank you’ systems.  
 
Complete identification of core IT and 
digital skills and future needs for each job 
role 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



 

 

 

addition, there was cross service representation on 3 day cyber 

resilience training.  

Induction: corporate induction has been refreshed; local 

induction improved with more guidance for managers.  

Identify and launch Continuous Improvement training: This has 
been incorporated into a new Management Development 
course which ran in June 2021 which included modules on 
Supporting and encouraging creativity and innovation, setting 
direction for your team and motivating as well as Monitoring, 
setting clear objective and ensuring service delivery.  
 
Establish an OD events schedule to work cross-department on 

complex or entrenched issues: We have not developed a 

schedule but instead, the Culture and Comms working group is 

taking forward a number of actions to maintain and develop 

the culture of the council. OD events have been held within 

Development Management and Revenues and Benefits.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117



 

 

 

2. Digital Transformation 
 

Areas Identified  
 

Status Progress on 2020/2021 actions Actions for 2021- 2022 

Recruiting and selecting for 

a digital environment 

Service reviews and business 

transformation 

Promoting digital working 

 

 Purchase an ATS recruitment solution. Update front-face of 

recruitment on website (microsite) to convey the council 

ambition and outlook and highlight the advantages of working 

for us: An ATS system has been purchased and will be going 

live, along with a new microsite for recruitment and a digital 

link to the HR & Payroll system in July 2021 

Develop the CHRIS system to enable modernisation of work 

processes: This work has not completed, largely due to 

competing COVID pressures on the Business Transformation 

Team, who are critical to this work. However, in the meantime, 

a significant amount of preparation and data quality work has 

been completed which will enable us to move forward when 

this is possible, hopefully in the Summer/Autumn of 2021.   

 

 Deliver the Recruitment and Onboarding 

programme, including the microsite, the 

Eploy ATS recruitment system and digital 

link to the HR & Payroll system.  

 

Deliver the HR Self-Service platform for 

staff and managers.  

Create total rewards programme (cars, 

bikes, annual leave etc and learning, agile 

working etc) 

Work with managers to incorporate 

digital ability and capacity assessments 

into recruitment for relevant roles 

Review PPD processes to ensure it 

supports continuous improvement, 

digital working, identifies highflyers and is 

flexible to all roles. 

 

 

 

 

118



 

 

 

3. Commercialisation 
 

Areas Identified  
 

Status Progress on 2020/2021 actions Actions for 2021- 2022 

Recruitment 
 
Role responsibilities and 
skills 
 
Culture and behaviours 
 
Leadership and training 

 Refresh job description and person specification templates to 
prompt for key skills / behaviours we want to attract – e.g. 
digital, commercial: A draft job description and person 
specification template has been developed incorporating these 
prompts and should be implemented within Q2.  
 
Ensure the front face of TBC's recruitment looks professional 
and reflects our commercial approach - ATS and website 
refresh’: This work is well underway and will be completed in 
July 2021. We have also created a new competitive and 
professional microsite for One Legal recruitment in partnership 
with Digital Transformation team and Communications 
colleagues to attract quality candidates in this hard-to-recruit 
field 
 
Undertake benchmarking for advertising to ensure posts are 
targeted to the greatest number of suitable candidates: The 
new recruitment system will allow much more accurate 
reporting to be done which will allow us to see where 
candidates are seeing our adverts and then maximise these 
routes. The new system will also use targeted job alerts to 
reach any candidate who has registered with us as soon as a job 
goes live.   
 
Make values and behaviours visible and embedded (walls, 
screensavers, lanyards, policy docs, job descriptions etc): The 
vision, values and behaviours have been added to HR policy 
templates, job description/person spec templates, PPD 

Make Tewkesbury’s vision, values and 
behaviours more visible around the 
offices.  

119



 

 

 

documents and interview documents. Work to make these 
more visible around the offices has been paused during COVID 
but will be revisited as we are able to return in Q3.   
 
Identify a programme of leadership and management training 
for middle managers, including commercial skills, improvement, 
project management, HR management, financial management, 
outcome focus): Two levels of training have been provided – an 
externally provided ILM 7 Strategic Leadership in Modern Local 
Government course, for managers via an application process 
and a more practical skills based internal course aimed at 
operational managers and team leaders.  
 
Procurement training refresh for relevant officers: this has been 
discussed with colleagues in Property, but due to COVID 
pressures has not been delivered yet.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

120



 

 

 

4. Workforce Resilience 
 

Areas Identified  
 

Status Progress on 2020/2021 actions Actions for 2021- 2022 

Invest further in 
apprenticeships 
 
Career progression 
 
Performance Management 
and Personal Development 
 
Succession Planning 

 Explore with all departments the opportunities for entry level 

apprenticeships but also maximise higher degree level 

apprenticeships for current staff: During the initial lockdown 

periods the council paused its apprenticeship programme as it 

was felt that we could not offer high quality placements, but as 

our COVID response developed this situation improved and all 

departments were offered the opportunity to host an 

apprentice in 2021 and we have recruited 4 new apprentices. 

There is more work to do around ensuring we are using our 

higher level apprenticeships strategically.  

Review PPD (development and appraisal) framework and 
process. Create a method / invest in technologies which 
capture PPD information to inform succession planning and 
training investment decisions: PPDs were paused in recognition 
of the unprecedented volumes of work brought about by the 
COVID pandemic. However, the PPD form has been revised and 
implemented for 2021.  
 
Establish an efficient and effective method for monitoring 

training and development. Develop a formal training plan: This 

work is in progress but has been delayed due to COVID.  

Work with other councils and partners to provide career 

broadening opportunities and experience: This has not been 

progressed due to COVID, and the extent to which we are able 

Maximise higher degree level 

apprenticeships for current staff.  

Create a method / invest in technologies 

which capture PPD information to inform 

succession planning and training 

investment decisions 

Establish an efficient and effective 

method for monitoring training and 

development. Develop a formal training 

plan 121



 

 

 

to develop this over 21/22 will be partially dependent on our 

ability to meet with others to collaborate and train more easily.  

5. Being a Great Place to Work 
 

Areas Identified  
 

Status Progress on 2020/2021 actions Actions for 2021- 2022 

Leadership 

Employer brand and 

marketing 

Flexible working 

Health and Wellbeing 

Everyone’s Council 

Engagement and 

Involvement 

 Create total rewards programme (cars, bikes, annual leave etc 
and learning, agile working etc): The new Agile Working policy 
has been implemented, the salary sacrifice schemes were 
paused during the COVID crisis as it would not have been the 
right time to promote ability to purchase additional annual 
leave when many have been struggling to use their leave, or get 
a new car when our ability to travel has been restricted. These 
schemes will be picked up again for 21/22.  
 
Review job evaluation processes: This action has been deferred 
pending the changes to Management Team as the Borough 
Solicitor is the corporate sponsor for Job Evaluation but at 
present has conflicting demands on her time. It will be 
completed in 21/22 
 
Create a system of regular reporting on key metrics for 
management team: This piece of work is dependent on the new 
systems for recruitment and self-service and therefore will be 
completed in Q4, once these projects are complete.  
 
Provide more visibility of opportunities for staff to get involved 
in decision-making (e.g. union activity, opportunities to set up 
'extra-curricular groups', feedback on initiatives): A new social 
committee has been set up and is operating. The Culture and 
Comms working group is also continuing to develop initiatives 
to develop employee engagement and voice.  

Complete total rewards programme.  
 
Review job evaluation processes 
 
Create a system of regular reporting on 
key metrics for management team 
 
Collect diversity data for all staff 
 
Use evidence based approaches to 
reducing the gender pay gap 
 

122



 

 

 

 
Collect diversity data for all staff: This work was delayed due to 
COVID pressures but is well on the way. In Q2 we will be 
collecting data from existing staff, and via the new recruitment 
and onboarding programme the council will collect equal 
opportunities data from all new applicants and employees 
which will allow us report not only on the profile of the council, 
but also on our success in terms of attracting a wide range of 
people.  
 
Use evidence based approaches to reducing the gender pay 
gap: Our gender pay gap has reduced.  
 
Set up Pulse checks to complement the employee survey: This 
was completed and runs quarterly as a form of employee voice 
and to give management the opportunity to act on issues as 
they arise.  
 

 

123



Appendix 2 

Assessment of Council Achievement against the Key Performance Measures set out in Workforce Development Strategy (2019 – 2024) 

 

Key Performance Measures as Described in Workforce Development 
Strategy 

 

Key Performance 
Measure 

What will it show Why use it Rate Progress Comment 

Time to hire Number of elapsed 
days from advert to 
issuing of contract 

To maintain 
effectiveness of 
recruitment systems 

52.5 days  
(7.5 weeks) 🙂 

 

For the period 1st April 2020 – 1st October 2020 
this was 62.3 so has reduced in the second half 
of 2020-21.   
 
Further changes to the recruitment and 
onboarding process with the new system coming 
in July 21 are expected to bring additional 
improvements.  

Candidate attraction Average number of 
candidates applying for 
each vacancy & posts 
filled on first advert 

To track impact of 
changes to recruitment 
and selection branding, 
systems and processes 
to widen talent pools 

10 
candidates 
per advert 
 
81% filled 
on first 
advert.  
92% filled 
after 
second 
advert. 

🙂 
 

1st April 2020 – 31st March 2021 
36 vacancies 
29 filled on first advert 
4 filled on second advert 
2 filled on third advert 
1 filled on fourth advert 
 
394 applications received across 36 vacancies 
 
Average number of candidates – 10 per vacancy 
 
Total number of applicants =  
26 internal applicants 
368 external applicants 
 
249 female applicants 
145 male applicants 

124



Key Performance Measures as Described in Workforce Development 
Strategy 

 

Key Performance 
Measure 

What will it show Why use it Rate Progress Comment 

 
These are reasonable fill rates, but the new 
recruitment system should support a greater 
distribution and reach for our adverts. Combined 
with the new microsite, showcasing our council, 
this should translate into more applicants and 
more posts filled more quickly for 2021-22. 

Absence rate Days lost per full-time 
equivalent 

Identify cost of 
absence and manage 
overall levels 

9.7 days 
lost per 
employee 
2020/21 

🙂 

 

Compared with last year’s rates of 12.4 average 

days lost per employee (April 2019 to March 

2020), this is a significant improvement.  

 

However, the HR & OD team will look to 

continue to address sickness absence and reduce 

it, including via a review of the Absence 

Management Policy in 2021-22.  

 

 

Causes of absence The most common 
reasons for employee 
sickness absence 

Track effectiveness of 
well-being programme 
through patterns in 
causes for absence 

NA 
 😐 

1 April to 31 March 2021 –  

1. Stress/Anxiety/Depression 
2. Eye, Ear, Nose, Mouth 
3. Musculoskeletal 
 

  

April to March 2019/20 

1. Stress/Anxiety/Depression 
2. Infections – Cold/flu 
3. Musculoskeletal 

 

125



Key Performance Measures as Described in Workforce Development 
Strategy 

 

Key Performance 
Measure 

What will it show Why use it Rate Progress Comment 

 
Whilst stress/anxiety/depression remains the 
top reason for absence, this is typical of reasons 
for absence in most organisations, followed by 
musculoskeletal. Due to the size of our council, 
one person with a particular issue on long term 
sickness, can skew this data, as has happened 
with the eye, ear, nose, mouth reason for 
absence the year 20/21.  

Voluntary turnover % of workforce 
voluntarily leaving 
employment in a 12 
month period 

To indicate satisfaction 
with council as an 
employer, manage 
retention rates 

6.1%  

🙂 
This is for 12 month period April 2020 to March 
2021. This compares well against the latest 
figures from the LGA (2018) where labour 
turnover rates were 13.4% 

Turnover of employees 
in year 1 of 
employment 

% of leavers with 12 
months service or less 

To indicate satisfaction 
with the council as an 
employer and 
effectiveness of 
recruitment and 
induction processes, 
manage retention rates  

1% 

🙂 
 

This is for 12 month period April 2020 to March 
2021. This is a very low figure which indicates 
that our recruitment and induction processes are 
working well.  

Apprentice retention % of apprentices 
securing a permanent 
role at the council 

To indicate success of 
apprenticeship scheme 
in meeting future 
workforce needs 

100% 

🙂 
 

Since 2019, 100% of apprentices have secured 
roles within the council and we have recently 
appointed a further three in Planning/Property, 
IT and Digital.  
 

Employee Opinion 
Survey – Advocacy 
Question: Council as an 
employer 

% of staff speaking 
positively of the 
Council as an employer 

Overall measure of 
employee 
engagement, manage 
retention rates.  

Not 
measured   😐 

The Employee Opinion Survey has been deferred 
to Autumn 2021 in response to the COVID-19 
emergency.  
 

126



Key Performance Measures as Described in Workforce Development 
Strategy 

 

Key Performance 
Measure 

What will it show Why use it Rate Progress Comment 

Employee Opinion 
Survey – Advocacy 
Question: Council as a 
service provider 

% of staff speaking 
positively of the 
council as a service 
provider.   

Measure strength of 
support for Council 
‘brand’ 

Instead, a tailored COVID-19 survey was 
developed to assess challenges, attitudes and 
challenges amongst the workforce which had a 
good response rate. A much shorter Pulse Check 
survey has been developed to build on this work 
to regularly ‘take the pulse’ of the workforce as 
we move through this crisis. The response from 
these Pulse Checks has been largely positive but 
also allowed the council to address some issues 
which had been raised.  
 

Employee Opinion 
Survey - % of staff 
looking for another job 
in 2 years 
  

% of staff looking to 
leave employment in 
next 2 years – and 
reason why 

To indicate satisfaction 
with council as an 
employer and compare 
potential turnover with 
actual. Manage 
retention rates 

Gender Pay Gap % gap in mean and 
median earnings of 
male and female 
employees 

To track success in 
addressing/reducing 
the gender pay gap. 

18% mean 
 
7.75% 
Median 
 

 😐 
There was no national requirement to report this 
year due to current pandemic. However, our 
local figures indicate a median pay gap of just 
below 8% which compares well with the national 
median of 17.8%.  
 
 

Diversity and Inclusion % employees (and 
senior managers) by 
protected 
characteristics 
compared to local 
workforce census %s 

To track effectiveness 
of diversity and equal 
opportunity policies 
and success in 
widening talent pools 
for jobs 

Not 
currently 
reportable 

  🙁 It is not currently possible to provide accurate 
figures for diversity as we do not hold complete 
data. As part of the development of the HR and 
payroll CHRIS system, this is being addressed and 
should be complete in Q2 of this year.  

Flexible / agile working % of Council vacancies 
advertised as open to 
flexible / agile working 

To track success in 
widening talent pools 
for jobs and employee 
retention 

100% 

🙂 
 

In the job details for all posts is the text: 'We 

welcome applications from candidates with 

flexible working requirements. We can offer 

127



Key Performance Measures as Described in Workforce Development 
Strategy 

 

Key Performance 
Measure 

What will it show Why use it Rate Progress Comment 

flexible working opportunities including flexible 

hours, part-time, job share and home working.'  

 

The ‘Guiding Principles’ for our return to the 

office post-COVID set out the framework which 

enables far more home working  

Workforce costs Actual and % total 
workforce costs 
compared to budget 

Ensure control of 
expenditure on 
workforce 

5.84% 
variance 🙂 

 

For Financial year 20-21 
Budget: £10,543,453 
Actual: £9,928,124 
 
The workforce budget was under control for this 
year.  

External pay and 
benefits checks 

Key roles where 
council pay and 
benefits package varies 
from competitors 

To manage 
recruitment and 
retention ‘hotspots’ 

NA 
  🙁 

Total Reward Strategy is being developed across 
the whole council including development of 
Agile Working policy, salary sacrifice schemes for 
annual leave, bikes and electric cars. Some of 
this has been delayed by COVID-19.  
 

 

128



The council has a strong track record of supporting the health and wellbeing of its 
officers, as demonstrated in our outstanding Workplace Wellbeing Charter report 

where we gained a rating of ‘Excellence’ across 5 categories. The council has a wide 
standard health and wellbeing offer, but has also specifically addressed the 

additional health and wellbeing risks posed by the coronavirus pandemic 

• Free counselling
• Comprehensive Occupational Health.
• Mental Health Action Plan – this details key activities around addressing

mental health concerns.
• Wellness Action Plans – this is an individualised plan to support an officer in

keeping well.
• Mental Health First Aiders.
• First Aiders.
• Annual plan for promotion and information sessions on wellbeing and

health issues, making use of national campaigns (Stoptober, Dry January
etc) and the resources available via Healthy Lifestyles Gloucestershire and
incorporating issues relevant to physical health and mental health, including
issues such as financial management and domestic abuse.

• Free flu vaccination programme - for those who are not eligible via the NHS.
• Flexible working practices – which has now been broadened and

incorporated into our new Agile Working Policy.
• Wellbeing Zone – this is a zone on the intranet where all of our information

about what is available is held so that it can be easily accessed by any
officer.

• Mental Health Awareness and Management training sessions for all
managers and staff run on a regular basis.

• Annual online workstation assessment via Cardinus.
• Nibblets sessions – these are short sessions which run and at this time

have focused on topics such as sleep and mindfulness. We hope to add
online yoga shortly.

• Reduced leisure centre membership rates.
• Annual Health MOT checks – offer open to staff via our Occupational Health

provider (paused at present for COVID).
• Eye test vouchers for display screen users.
• Keep Safe, Stay Healthy group has a wide senior membership and oversees

health, safety and wellbeing.
• Management toolkit/how to – these are being developed as an easy to use

management tool to support wellbeing and manage sickness absence well.
• Policy development – the absence management policy is being reviewed

and a new domestic abuse policy is being developed.

1

Standard health and well being offer

Health and Wellbeing
Appendix 3

129

https://tewkesburybc.sharepoint.com/sites/tbcintranet/Site Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=/sites/tbcintranet/Site%20Documents/Corporate%20Services/Human%20Resources/Wellbeing%20zone/Tewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%20Post%20Assessment%20Report%20January%202020.pdf&parent=/sites/tbcintranet/Site%20Documents/Corporate%20Services/Human%20Resources/Wellbeing%20zone


Tewkesbury
Borough Council

• Additional flexibility around working patterns – this particularly supports those
who are also managing responsibilities outside of work (e.g homeschooling.)

• Training for staff on Working Effectively Remotely – new training commissioned
including the importance of wellbeing.

• Training for managers on Managing Remote Teams – new training commissioned
including managing for wellbeing in teams.

• Tailored Teams Workshops – new workshops for teams to learn how to use
Microsoft Teams effectively and make the most out of it for their team.

• Managing Difficult Calls – new training commissioned to support those dealing
with challenging conversations when working in areas such as the Community
Help Hub or on the Grants Team. A reference guide was also produced to
support this work.

• Risk assessments for all activity away from own home.
• Temporary homeworking module from Cardinus rolled out to all – this supported

those working in less than ideal home situations with practical and pragmatic
suggestions. This has been supplemented with a simple homeworking guide with
tips for making it work effectively and healthily.

• Equipment issue – separate keyboards, mice, headsets and laptop risers, loan of
office chairs and desks where necessary have allowed healthy working positions.
Away from the office FFTP3 masks and face shields have been issued.

• Staff Survey and Pulse Check – the larger staff survey and the short quarterly
pulse check highlight common issues with health or work so that these can be
addressed promptly.

• Culture and Communications working group – this group has been set up to
ensure that we keep and develop a culture which is friendly, engaging,
professional and fosters innovation; where our employees are positive and
motivated to achieve the very best – one of the actions from this group has been
to establish a social committee.

• Staff briefings are now monthly instead of quarterly.
• Temporary policies developed for payment of additional hours worked, annual

leave flexibility and relaxation of normal flexi-leave rules.

2

Additional health and wellbeing support, 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

130

https://tewkesburybc.sharepoint.com/sites/tbcintranet/Site Documents/Corporate Services/Human Resources/COVID-19 policies/Managing contacts and accessing support guide.pdf
https://tewkesburybc.sharepoint.com/sites/tbcintranet/Site Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Ftbcintranet%2FSite%20Documents%2FCorporate%20Services%2FHuman%20Resources%2FAgile%20working%2FWorking%20from%20home%20guidance%20and%20comms%20best%20practice%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2Ftbcintranet%2FSite%20Documents%2FCorporate%20Services%2FHuman%20Resources%2FAgile%20working&RootFolder=%2Fsites%2Ftbcintranet%2FSite%20Documents%2FCorporate%20Services%2FHuman%20Resources%2FAgile%20working&FolderCTID=0x0120005190FCC301384D4380311B1BD2CAB6AB


Document is Restricted

131

Agenda Item 14



Document is Restricted

134


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Executive Committee Forward Plan
	6 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22
	7 Ubico Report 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Management Annual Report -Apr 2020 - Mar 2021

	9 Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee Update
	10 Financial Outturn Report 2020/21
	Financial Outturn - Appendix A - GF outturn 20_21
	Financial Outturn - Appendix B - Reserves
	Financial Outturn - Appendix C- capital outturn
	TM-Outturn-Report-2020-21 - Appendix D

	11 Carbon Reduction Action Plan
	Appendix A -  Year 1 and Year 2 Action Plans
	Tewkesbury Borough Council��CN2030 Year 1 Review & Year 2 Action Plan� ��
	Context 
	Year 1 Objectives from Action Plan
	A look at the main specific outputs
	1) Monitoring & Targeting
	2a) Surveys for Domestic Estate
	2b) Surveys for Roses
	3) External Funding
	4) PSC & the �Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme
	4) PSC and PSDS Continued…
	Additional Outputs Achieved in 2020
	PSC Data for 2020
	Year 2 ‘20 Point’ Action Plan (2021-22)


	12 Annual Workforce Development Strategy Review 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - Workforce Development Action Plan 2021 - 22
	Appendix 2 - Key Performance Outturn 2020-21
	Appendix 3 - Health and wellbeing response to COVID-19

	14 Trade/Commercial Waste Service Business Case Update
	Appendix 1 - High Level Implementation Plan




